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The John Leuns Partnership

The John Lewis Partnership 1s one of the UK’s top ten retail businesses with 28 John Lews full
hne department stores, 4 John Lewis at home stores, 235 Waitrose supermarkets, 15 Waitrose
convenience stores, waitrose com and business to business contracts 1n the UK and abroad

It 15 also the country’s largest employee co-owned business, with 76,500 employees The Partnership
aims to ensure that everyone who works for 1t enjoys the experience of ownership, by sharmng

in the profits, by having access to informaton and by shanng in decision making through
mfluencing and making recommendations to the Charrman on any subject

The Partnership believes that the commitment of Partners to the business 1s a umque source
of competitive advantage which has underpinned over 8¢ years of growth and a reputaton
amongst customers and suppliers unparalleled 1n the UK retail industry

The company’s record of performance testufies to the robustness of the vision of 1ts founder,
John Spedan Lews, to ¢reate a company dedicated to the happiness of the staff through therr
worthwhile and satsfiing employmentn a successful business

John Lewss Partmership plc and 1ts subsichary john Lewis plc have small 1ssues of preference
stock which have first claim on the profits The whole of the remaining profit 1s available to be
used for the benefit of the business and the Partners The share of profits allocated to Parmners,
the Partnership bonus, 1s fixed each year by the Partmershp Board and s distiibuted as the same
percentage of gross annual pay for all Partners All Partners received an 18% bonus for 2010/11
as their share of profits at a total cost of £194 5m




Charke Mayfield
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Charrman’s statement

This was a year in which the Partnership achieved market-beatng sales growth and delivered
a healthy increase in profits despate the difficult economic backdrop This strong
performance 15 the result of our 76,500 Partners’ determinauon to give customers the best
possible shopping expenence We have renewed our commitment 1n both Waitrose and John
Lewis to improving the value we offer to customers, and broader ranges and innovative
markeung have attracted more customers and boosted our market share

The Partnership has clearly established itself as a leader 1n mult-channel retaihng Our
vestment over many years in johnlewis com and our growing presence in Waitrose Delwver,
together with our supply relationship with Ocade, have brought our offer to more people 1n
more parts of the country and these imuauves have been at the forefront of our growth and
mnovation Waitrose has concentrated on attracting more new customers through invesung
n value, innovanve top-uer ranges, new space and new formats such as the convemence tnal
stores We have made great progress this year in combining the John Lewis online operations
with 1ts shops to offer customers greater choice and flexibility which has been

complemented by an mnovauve product offer and improved accessibility through the

“John Lews at home™ mal format

The Partnership 1s a long-term business, held in trust for the benefit of our Partmers This
has given us, we believe, significant competitive advantage We’ve been able to accelerate our
investment during the recession creanng around 7,500 new jobs Where we have made
significant changes to the structure of our business, we have done so by engaging Partners
And, most important of all, our Partners have shown their commitment to contanually
umproving what we do every day In return we reward our Partners for their efforts — we
conunue to offer a nen-contributory final salary pension to Partners with more than 3 years
service and our main pension fund has moved into surplus on a funding basis

The profiis we make go to Partners and to improving the business for the future and I am
delighted that Partners received a bonus of 18%, an average of more than 9 weeks' pay

2011/12 Outlook

After 9 weeks, Partnership gross sales are 4 4% higher than last year Waitrose gross sales
have increased by 6 2% (2 3% like for hke) and John Lews gross salesare 1 1% higher than
last year (0 6% lower hike for like)

We expect trading conditions to be more difficult in 2011, as the VAT mcrease, nsing
unemployment, and public sector spending cuts begin to have an 1mpact on consumer
spending We are, however, encouraged that some parts of the Briush economy are
improving shghtly We are seeing some early signs that property developers are willing to
invest 1n new projects and developments and we expect further progress this year on our
store expansion pipeline

Our co-ownership model allows us to take a longer-term view, which enabled us to conunue |
to nvest through the recession and the benefit of that has been clearly seen 1n our results
Despite the more challenging condiuons we expect in 2011, we are confident in the plans we
have in place We will conunue to strengthen the Partnership, invesung approximately

£0 6bn in the current year ¢reaung around 4,300 new jobs and we wll continue to give our
customers the value and service they demand

Charlie Mayfield
Chairman
7 Aprl 2011
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Business review

Rewvnew of performance

John Lew1s Partnership
* Gross sales up £784 8m, 10 6%, to £8 21bn

* Group operaung profit up £41 3m, 10 6%, to £429 3m
e Profit before Partnership bonus and tax up £61 4m, 20 0%, to £367 6m
+ Partnership bonus of £194 5m, 18% of salary (equal to more than § weeks’ pay)

‘Wautrose
¢ Gross sales up £442 3m, 9 8%, to £4 97bn

*  Like-forlike gross sales up 4 0% (food only, excludes petrol)
*  Operaung profit up £8 1m, 3 0%, to £274 9m

John Lewis
e  Gross sales up £342 5m, 11 9%, to £3 23bn

¢ Like-forlike gross sates up 10 0%, johnlewis com sales up £147 9m, 37 9%, to £538 2m

¢ Operaung profit up £36 5m, 22 2%, to £201 2m
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Five year record — years ended January

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m Em £m £m
Gross sales (including sale
or return sales and VAT) 8,206 3 7,4215 6,967 5 6,762 8 6,362 3
Revenue
Waitrose 4,699 9 4,317 2 3,940 1 3,737 2 3,497 3
John Lewis 2,661 9 2,417 4 2,327 1 2,315 0 2,1889
Revenue 7,361.8 6,734 6 6,267 2 6,052 2 5,686 2
Operating profit"
Waitrose 2749 266 8 2145 226 2 1706
John Lewis 201.2 1647 1459 197 5 169 3
Corporate and other? (46 8) (43 5) (39 2) (332) -
Operating profit 429 3 3880 3212 3905 3399
Net finance costs 617) (81 8) (42 2) {10 8) (197}
Share of post tax losses of
associate (Ocado) - - - (8 0 (180)
Exceptional gain in respect of
associate (Ocado) - - 127 4 80 180
Profit before Partnerstup
bonus and tax 3676 3062 406 4 3797 3202
Taxation (45 6) (48 3) (47 7) (59 4) (56 9)
Net profit available for profit
sharing and retention in
the business 3220 2579 358 7 3203 2633
Partnership bonus (194 5) (151 3) (125 4} (181 1) {154 1)
As a percentage of pay 18% 15% 13% 20% 18%
Discontinued operations - - - eon 07
Profit for the year retained in
the business 1275 1066 2333 1301 108 5
Net assets 2,0725 1,704 2 1,722 5 1,683 9 1,6501
Pay 1,021 7 940 4 08 O 864 8 8176
Average number of employees 74,800 70,000 68,700 68,200 66,800
including part-bime employees 40,800 37,300 35,900 36,700 35,900
Average number of FTEs 48,500 45,900 45,100 44 900 43,900

*53 week year

9 Diwisional operating profit is after charging relevant corporate costs based on the business segments’
usage of corporate facilities and services 2007 has not been restated to reflect corporate cost

allocations

@ Corporate and other costs are pnncipally corporate and shared senvice overheads, transformation costs
and the new Partnership Services division set up costs
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

Across the group we focus on a number of KPIs in order to idenufy trends in the trading
performance of both Waitrose and John Lewis These KPIs are designed to help
us understand how we are using our assets and where we are achieving efficiencies with

the group
Waitrose John Group Waitrose John Group
Lewis Lewis
2011 2011 2011 2010 2010 2010
Trading performance
Gross sales growth — total
continuing operations 98% 11.9% 106% 9 0% 2 8% 6 5%
Gross sales growth — hke-for-like® 40% 100% 6 4% 36% 2 3% 31%
Operating margin® 55% 6 2% 53% 59% 57% 53%
Gross sales per selling FTE (£E000s} 226 6 1859 2225 1631
Operating profit per FTE (£000s)® 108 9.1 89 114 78 85
Number of stores® 243 32 223 29
Average selling space (m sq ft)® 46 4.0 86 42 39 81
Gross sales per selling sq ft (£) 1,093 808 960 1,066 740 910
Operating profit per selling sg ft (£)2 60 50 50 63 42 48
Cash flow and hquidity
Operating cash flow before
Partnersmp bonus {(£m) 757.4 657 3
Capital expenditure {Em)* 3540 1195 4927 3035 1118 4451
Interest cover® 39 55
Balance sheet.
Net assets (Em) 2,0725 1,704 2
Net debt (£m)*” 493.0 3608
Geanng™ 23.8% 21 2%
Return on invested capitai® 7.9% 77%

W pike-for-like sales exclude the impact of branch opemngs and closures

@ Operating profit excludes profits from the disposal of surplus property Margin 1s expressed as a %

of gross sales

@ The number of stores trading as at the year end date
W Average selling space (of all stores and branches} includes all customer facing areas and excludes

offices, warehouse space and staff facilities

% Capital expenditure for the group includes £19 2m (2010 £29 8m) of spending on group-wide
information technology systems, vehicles, offices and other assets, not allocated to the operating

businesses

® Interest cover i1s profit before net finance costs and tax, after Partnership bonus, divided by net
finance costs excluding the financing element of pensions and long service leave, and fair value

adjustments
™ Geaning 1s net debt divided by net assets

®  Return on invested capital 1s post tax profit, adjusted for non-operating items, as a proportion of
average operating net assets, ad)usted to reflect a deemed capital value for property lease rentals




Partners at
Bluewater
celebrating the
18% bonus that
was awarded

m 2011
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Group performance

2010/11 saw the group reap the benefit of
decisions taken to invest during the recession,
resulung 1n strong sales growth in both Waitrose
and John Lewis Throughout the year both
Waitrose and John Lews traded ahead of thewr
respective markets They increased market
share, developed their online offers, opened
new stores and new formats while continuing to
improve and mnnovate their shops across the
country

The Group's gross sales were £8 21bn, up
£784 8m, or 10 6% on last year Waitrose gross
sales were £4 97bn, up 9 8%, while John Lewis
gross sales were £3 23bn, up 11 9%

Operatung profit was £429 3m, up £41 3m,
10 6%, on last year

Profit before Partnership bonus and tax was
£367 6m, up £61 4m, or 20 0%, on last year
Operating profit margin as a percentage of
gross sales remained at 5 23% Profit before
Partnership bonus and tax as a percentage of
gross sales mcreased from 4 1% to0 4 5%

Partnership bonus was £194 5m, which equates
to 18% of pay or the equivalent of 9 4 weeks’
pay, compared to £151 3m or 15% of pay, the
equivalent of 7 8 weeks’ pay last year
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Business review

Reuvew of performance (continued)

Net finance costs

Net finance costs, which reflect the cost of our debt
plus the mterest element of our pension and long
service leave, decreased by £20 1, from £81 8m to
£61 7m Changes to the finanang element of pension
costs, which 1s the difference between the returm on
the scheme assets and the mnterest cost on the scheme
habiliies, and the financing element of long service
leave are driven by changes in the external nvestment
market mcluding rates for corporate bonds, which
means these costs can change matenally from one
year to the next driven by market volanhty They have
decreased by £38 Om, from £40 2m last year to £2 2m
this year Excluding pensions and long service leave,
net finance costs ncreased by £17 9m, 43 0%, from
£41 6m 0 £59 5m, mamly due to the premum of

£9 2m paid on the parhal buyback of £158m of the
nomnal value of the 2012 Bond, mterest payable on
the £300m Bond ssued 1n July 2010 of £9 7m and a
full year's mterest payable on the £275m Bond ssued
mn Apnl 2009 of £23 Om bemg an mcrease of £4 2m
These are partly offset by a decrease in interest payable
of £5 3m on the 2012 Bond, following the

buyback and m floaung mterest payable of £1 4m on
Interest rate swaps and medum term loans.

Pension charge

We continue to maintain an open
non-contrbutory final salary defined benefit
pension scheme We now have about 45,000 actve
members, 24,000 pensioners and dependants and
30,000 deferred pensioners in the Scheme

Day-to-day management of the funds is delegated to
a number of mvestment managers under

the guidance of the Trustees The assets of the
schemes are held 1n separate funds admurstered by
the Trustees The Partnership takes a long term view
of its pensions hiabilines but recogmises that there are
sigmificant nsks from ncreasing longewty, the effect
of age discnimimanon legislanon, and from volaahty
and uncertanty in the mvesunent markets

The pension accounting charge included within
operanng profit of £122 9m for the year to

29 January 2011, was up 24 3% or £24 Om on last
year, due mainly to adverse movements in corporate
bond yields Actual pension cash conmbutons in
respect of the year were £267 Om, compared to
£107 1m for last year, reflecang ongoing
conmbutions of £84 4m, agreed deficit reducnon
conmbutons of £22 6m and a £150 Om one-off
special cash contribution macde i March 2010

A defined coninmbution scheme 15 also available
in the three year pertod for Pariners waiung to
enter the defined benefit scheme, to provnde
pension benefits during the waiing period The
Partnership matches contnibutions made by
Partners, up to 6% of penstonable pay

8
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Dunng the year Parmers conmbuted £1 4m 1o the
defined contribubon scheme and the Partnership
provided contmbutions of £1 1m Partners are also
able to top up their pension provision with
Additonal Voluntary Contnbuaons (AVCs} Duning
the year 18,300 Parmers contributed £20 6m 1n
AVCs At the year end the combined defined
conirbubon and AVC funds stood at £210 6m
Actuanal valuation of the pension funds

A formal actuarial valuation 1§ carred out at least
once every three years by an independent
professionally quahfied actuary, in order to assess, on
a prudent basis, the amount of assets to be set aside
to meet the pension promses made to the valuanon
date, taking into account furure expected mvestment
returns, as well as to determune the future level of
fundmg, estmated on prudent assumpnons that the
Parmership needs to put into the schemes For the
main pension scheme, the last formal valuation was
carmed out as at 31 March 2010 This resulted in a
funding surplus of £83m The market value of the
assets of the fund as at 31 March 2010 was £2,341m
The actuanal valuanon of these assets showed that
they were sufficient to cover 104% of the benefits
which had accrued to members As at 29 January
2011 the funding surplus 1s eshmated to have
ncreased to £105m or 105%

In additon to the mamn scheme there 1s also a
senior pension top up scheme The last formal
valuanon of this Scheme was carred out as at

31 March 2010 and resulted 1n a funding defiat of
£6m Defiat reduction conmbutions totaling £6m
were made 1n January and February 2011 o
discharge this deficit.

The next formal actuanal valuation of both pension
schemes will take place as at 31 March 2013
Accounting valuation under IAS 19

IAS 19 requures the financial posinon of the
Partnership’s pension funds to be reassessed at each
balance sheet reporung date following a prescribed
methodology This produces results that are
different from, and more volaale than, the actuarial
valuanon, as members’ habihines at the balance sheet
date are valued using market rates of corporate
bonds and do not reflect expected future returns on
the assets the fund owns Other key assumpnons for
the 1AS 19 accounting valuation have been based on
those used for the most recent actuanal valuauon,
adjusted to represent a best esumate rather than a
prudent view, where appropriate These have been
updated to assess the assets and Labihues of the
schemes as at 29 January 2011

The assets of the pension funds as at 29 January
2011 were £2,466m (2010 £1,948m) The
accountung liabihiues of the pension funds were
calculated to be £2,830m (2010 £2,853m)
Together, this resulted 1n an IAS 19 pension fund
defiat of £414m (2010 £905m), a reductuon of
£491m (54%)

9




John Leuns invested 1
Magna Park, the new
distribution centre
near Milton Keynes
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

The increase 1n the pension asset values since last
year reflects recovery in the equuty markets and
steps taken to mingate the pension deficit,
including a £150m one-off special cash
contribution made into the Pension Fund in
March 2010 In addinon, dunng the year the
Penston Fund took the opportumty to reduce 1ts
stake mn the Ocado business at the ume of 1ts
Inmitial Public Offering 1 July 2010, realising
£100m, and since year end has sold the remaining
shares 1n this business, realising a further £150m
The Partnership transferred its shareholding 1n
Ocado to the Pension Fund 1n November 2008 at
avalue of £127 7m In total £250m has been
realised from the disposal of the Sharcholding
that cost the Partnership £80m

The main differences between the estimated
funding valuaton surplus at 29 January 2011 of
£105m and the IAS 19 pension fund defiait of
£414m relate to different rates used to reflect the
current value of the scheme’s future habihues (the
discount rate) of £440m, the exclusion of the
fund’s investment 1n JLP Scottish Linited
Parmership for 1AS 19 purposes of £98m, offset by
other favourable differences of £19m

Tax

The tax charge decreased compared with last year
despite increased profits, mainly because of the
impact of the corporauon tax rate change from
28% to 27% on brought forward deferred tax
balances This resulted in an effective tax rate of
26 3% compared to last year’s rate of 31 2%
Capital expenditure

Capital spending in 2010/11 increased by £48m to
£493m, compared with £445m last year Waitrose
invested £354m, mainly on 20 new stores acquired
or built duning the year, three relocations and the
acquisinon of five Channel Island stores John
Lews mvested £120m, opening three at home
stores, rolling out the new Womenswear concept
to nine depariment stores, and nvesang in a new
full ine deparunent store at Stradord, which will
open in September 2011 In addinon, £19m of
expenditure was mvested centrally, mainly in
maintaining and modernising our Informauoen
Technology platforms, head office buildings and
refurbishment of our hohday centres

Cash flow and net debt

We generated £757 4m 1n operanng cash flow
(before Partnership bonus) up 15 2% on the pnior
year Qur geanng rato increased from 21 2%

to 23 8% with year-end net debt increasing

by £132 2m to £493 Om This increase 15 due o
additional net cash borrowings whach were
invested 1n the business and used to pay the
special conmbunon to the pension scheme

10
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Return on mvested capital

Return on invested capital (note 8, page 6) was
7 9% an amprovement of 0 2% on last year’s

7 7% and reflects increased returns from
mvestment decisions and efficiency ininauves
made across the Partnership

Profit for the year
Profit for the year was £127 5m, up by £20 9m
(19 6%) on last year

Net assets

Net assets increased by £368 3m, 21 6%, 10
£2,072 5m This 1s mainly due to significant
mvestments 1n hew stores, extensions and
refurbishments, distnbution and new
informaton technology systems of £492 7m and
a decrease 1n the pension fund deficit of

£350 8m, net of £139 Bm deferred tax, offset by
an increase 11 net debt of 132 2m and
depreciatzon and amornsauon of £239 5m

11
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Business review

Review of performance (continued)

Waitrose
Waitrose traded strongly through the year,
achieving among the best margins of the sector

Waitrose concentrated on attracting more new
customers through investing in value, innovauve
top-uer ranges, new space and new formats
These investments succeeded 1n atiracung on
average around 300,000 new weekly customers

As a result, gross sales grew by 9 8% to £4 97bn
Food only hke-for-like sales grew 4 0%,
excluding petrol

Sales density rose by 2 5% to £1,093 per square
foot and sales producuwity per selling FTE
increased to £226,600, up by £4,100 (1 8%)

on last year

On value, Waitrose boosted 1ts posinon with the
launch in September of Brand Price Maich, a
long-term commutment to price match Tesco on
1,000 branded products, which sits alongside
the essential Wartrose range This combination
means customers know they can get their weekly
shop at Waitrose wathout sacnificing erther value
or quality

Wairose’s credentals for good food, fine quality
mngredients and cooking were further
sirengthened with the arrval of Deha Smuth and
Heswon Blumenthal as brand ambassadors in
March 2010 The successful markeung campaign
— across adverusing, online and publicauons —1s
attracting new customers and generating
substanual incremental sales of around £50m

Waitrose has an unmatchable top-tier of
product ranges and innovaton contnued
throughout 2010 with the launch of Menu From
Waitrose, Duchy Onginals From Waitrose and
Heston From Waitrose Another significant
development that underhnes the Waitrose
commutment to quality cooking was the launch
of the UK'’s first supermarket cookery school
based 1n London 1n November 2010

The online business went from strength to
strength and 1s poised for further growth
following the move onto a new technology
platform Jaunched in March 2011, and
expansion within the M25 without restriction
from July 2011

12
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Twenty new branches were opened during the
year plus three relocanons, which represents an
addruonal 253,000 sq ft, 5 7%, of seling space
Nine of these new shops are in the convemence
format, including three in the new small
convenience format Five shops were acquired
in the Channel Islands with the first branch in
Jersey opening 1n February 2011 and the first
branch in Guernsey opeming 1in March 2011

Two key strategic partnerships have taken
Waitrose to many more customers in a range of
settings Welcome Break service station outlets
are performing ahead of expectauons and the
trial with Boots continues to show encouraging
results at this early stage

Waitrose’s mvestment was not only in new and
refurbished shops, but also 1n infrastructure,
where 1t invested £64 3m during the year In July
2010 a new 100,000 sq fi chilled warehouse was
opened i Bracknell and the “end-to-end” focus
on operatonal efficiency in 1ts supply chain
generated substantial sanings These investments
are critical to driving efficiencies, creating
further capacity for growth and delivering profit
margins

Operaung profit grew by 3 0% to £274 9m
Operating margin was down shightly from 5 89%
to 5 53%, operating profit per square foot was
marginally down 3 8% to £60 as was operaung
profit per FTE which decreased by 4 0% to
£10,800, reflecung mvestment in the business
that has yet to reach matunty

13
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Business review

Reuview of performance (continued)

John Lewis

John Lews performed well ahead of expectanons,
consistently beating compeutors in both shops
and online Gross sales grew by 11 9%, o

£3 23bn Like-forhike sales grew by 10 0%

Sales per square foot rose by 9 2% 1o £808, from
£740 last year, and sales per selhng FTE grew by
£22,800, 14 0% to £185,900

All areas of the business have traded well, and
contiue to gain market share, demonstratng the
appeal and relevance of the offer Each category
achieved strong sales growth Fashion was up by
14 7%, Home up by 12 3% and Electricals &
Home Technology (EHT) up by 8 4%

John Lewis’ muluchannel and onkne operauons
were crical to this success johnlewas com
achieved sales of £538 2m, up £147 9m, or 37 9%,
and well ahead of expectatons This was achieved
by increasing the number of products sold online,
nvestang further in the development of the
Magna Park disuibuuon facility and extending
services such as Chick & Collect which gives
customers greater flexibility in their shopping
Customers can now chick and collect from all
John Lewrs branches and 24 Wairose branches

A key driver of online sales growth was the
fashion category which continues to strengthen
with new brands such as Ghost, Armam and
Mint Velvet These onhne mnittatives have been
recogrised by Which® awarding johnlewis com
“online retailer of the year”

The Never Knowingly Undersold (NKU) pricing
commitment was strengthened through 1ts
extension to the online price of “bricks and
chcks™ compettors

In 2011 the johnlewis com delivery catchment
wiil be extended to cover international
locauons, imnally within mainland Europe, the
Nordic countnes and Ireland

John Lewis has transformed the look of 1ts
fashion floors which reflects a determimauon to
have an unbeatable range and presentanon m
fashion Customer appeal remans broad with a
choice of producis from value to premium, with
an emphasis on mnovaton throughout the offer

14




Our shop on the
Obymine site at
Stratford 15 set lo open
i September 2011
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The accessibihity of John Lewis continues to
improve with three further at home shops
opening 1n Croydon, Swindon and Tunbridge
Wells in addinon to the first in Poole
Customers have responded well to the new
format with three further openings planned 1n
2011

John Lewis conunues the growth of 1ts estate
with an exciting new department store on the
Olympic site at Stratford, opening 1n September
2011, and 1t will continue to work with property
developers to explore potennal new locations 1n
key city centres in the United Kingdom such as
the recently announced Birmungham shop The
mmportance of the existing estate 1s reflected 1n
an ongoing refurbishment programme which 1s
improving infrastructure and introducing
mnovative new retail concepts

John Lews will be the Official Department
Store Provider to the London 2012 Olympic
Games and Paralympic Games and recognises
the important part 1t will play in the future of
Stratford as a vibrant retail centre

Durning the year 1t relaunched 1ts insurance
business under the John Lewis brand with
encouraging results

John Lewis’ reputation for outstanding quality,
value and service was recognised by Verdict,
awarding 1t “Britain’s favounte retailer” in 2011
for the 8th ume n the award’s 12 years

Operaung profit grew by 22 2% to £201 2m and
has returned to pre-recession levels Operating
profit margin on gross sales mmcreased by 53
basis points

Operaung profit per square foot grew by £8,
19 2%, to £50 and operaung profit per FTE
improved by 17 8% to £9,100

15
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Business review

Business and strategy

John Lews plc 1s the trading company of the John Lewis Parmership and consequently 1ts business
and strategy are consistent with the strategy of the John Lews Partnership (“The Parmership’) set
out below

Purpose of the Partnership

The Partnership’s reputation 1s founded on the uniqueness of our ownership structure and our
commercial success Our purpose 15 the happiness of all our members, through their worthwhile
and sausfying employment 1 a successful business, with success measured by our abihity to sustain
and to enhance our position both as an outstanding retailer and a thnving example of employee
ownership We beheve our model, where commercal success 15 a driving force but where the needs
of Customers, Partners, and long-term financial ambitions are balanced, represents a sustainable,
compassionate and farer form of capitalism and a better way to do business

Strategic development - background

The Partnership owns two of the strongest retail brands 1n the UK. Waitrose 1s renowned for the
freshness, quahty, safety and provenance of its food combined wath the experuse and service of a
specialist shop while John Lewis’ reputation 1s built on a strong product range and excellent
service Neither Waitrose nor John Lewis depends on dominant market share but on distincuve
posinoning which secures an exceptional degree of loyalty from customers That loyalty has been
built on customers’ trust and confidence 1n our sourcing, pricing and quality standards and by
selling our products imparually with consistently exceptional service More recently 1t has been
remforced by recognition of our long-held desire 1o act responsibly and to minimise our
environmental impact The Partnership 13 umquely placed to do this because our social, ethical
and environmental values are ingramed 1n our culture, and we consistently demonstrate this
through our commuument to the communines we serve

2010 continued to offer a difficult econormc backdrop, with pressure exerted on consumers
through a mixture of nflationary pressure, nsing unemployment, subdued wage rises and public
spendmng cuts We expect 2011 to be difficult with a contunuauon of the negatve factors impacting
consumers and exerting pressure on household spending However, the Partnership retains a long
term outlook and we remain commtted to providing a disunctive offer and expenence to our
customers and 1o nurwure ‘an enterprising Partnership’that delivers innovative customer solutions

Strategic mitiatives

Our strategy 1s founded on three key building blocks - Partner, Customer and Profit, and we
ensure that the Parmership develops in a way which improves each of these in a posiive manner,
while maimntaining a balance between the three

Both our brands raded well through 2010, outperformng their respective markets, and this confidence
has been supported by a strong media presence The mvestments we made in value have been especially
mportant. In Waitrose, the success of the essenual range, our Brand Price Match Immmative and
promotonal pricing, such as for the Delia and Heston campaigns, generated growth Likewise, John
Lews has placed great emphasis on value with new ranges, powerful advertsing and the launch of Never
Knowingly Undersold online to match bricks and clicks competitors We are also managing substannal
reorgamsations in parts of our business to ensure that the Partnership remans compentve and that our
Parmers remain at the heart of our service offering

We continue to pursue profitable growth within the UK and seek new opportuniues to develop our
brands We have taken both Waitrose and John Lews to new customers through the opening of
standard stores and exatng new smaller formats We have expenenced strong growth from our
onhne operatons as customers increasingly embrace a muluchannel approach to retail, and we wll
conunue to invest n improving the ease with which our customers can mteract with us In Waitrose
we have begun to develop strategic partnerships to broaden our appeal to reach new customers
Within John Lewis we have introduced a mobile-opumised website which recognises our customers’
desire for a seamless shopping experience, an area we will bwid on 1n the corming year

During the year we relaunched our Greenbee direct services business as John Lewis Insurance and
refocused 1t on purely financial service protection products We believe that this prowvides a closer
linkage between these trust based products and our existing brand We contnue to examine ways
to further leverage the Partnership’s brands going forward
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Business review

Resources and relationships

Partners

Our culture

The Partnership’s ulumate purpose 1s “the happiness of Partmers through worthwhile and
sausfying empleyment in a successful business” To achieve this, we aim to create an environment
where all Partners have a consistent, rewarding and mouvaung expenence This experience 1s
based on the Partnership and Partners delivening three commitments

¢ Take responsibility for our business success we take responsibility to deliver the right
expertence for all our customers and generate profits for us all to share,

*  Build relanonships powered by our principles we build relationships based on honesty,
respect and encouragement We expect these behaviours of each other and demonstrate
them at all tmes,

»  Create real influence over our working hives we take opportumunes to develop ourselves,
balance work and life priorities and offer personal support

We aim to recruit and retain Partners who can deliver commeraial success and also demonstrate,
through their behaviours, that they embrace our disunct culture

The John Lewis Partnership operates without discrimination and embraces diversity, this 1s
reflected mn all that we do The Partnership 1s committed to providing equal opportumues for all
in employment, regardless of individual differences such as gender, ethnic origin, disability, sexual
onentation, age, social background, religion and beliefs Discriminauen of any kind will not be
tolerated and will be dealt with in hine with the Partnership’s ‘Fair Treatnent’ policy

Talent development

Our intention 1s that every Partner fulfils their individual potential and can develop their career
within the Partnership We aim 10 provide exemplary leadership that empowers Partners to
delwer first class customer service 1n each one of our department stores, food shops, or other
retail channels Our Partners are equipped to do so through their atutude, behaviour and skills,
supported by firstclass raiming and development

Benefits

Our reward strategy aims to provide a Total Reward Package that offers competitive pay and
disuncuve market leading benefits, such as our non-contributory defined benefit final salary
pension scheme for those Partners who stay with us for more than three years, and for those 1n
therr first three years, a defined contribution scheme where we will match Partner contmbuuons
up 10 6% We aim o prowide opportumues for Partners to have a choice m benefits and leisure
acuvities, recognising the growing diversity of Partners Qur reward policies are developed to
encourage a sense of belonging to a community and to offer opportunities Partners cannot easily
obtamn themselves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Partnership has always believed that commercial success 1s directly inked to being a good
corporate aiizen Qur commitment to act responsibly 1s strengthened by the social, ethical and
environmental values ingrained 1n our culture respect, honesty and farrness, sharing the rewards
and responsibilities of ownership, and conducting our business with integnity and courtesy

Over the last year, we have made strong progress in embedding CSR further into the business and
raising Partner awareness Thus has resulted 1n strengthened product sourcing policies, improved
waste recycling rates and increased charitable and community contributions Our efforts have also
been recogmsed externatly in leading benchmarks of CSR performance - we retained our
platnum level status 1n the Business in the Community (BITC) Corporate Responsibihity Index

A key focus for us now 1s achieving an abselute reducnon in our operauonal carbon emissions by
2020/21, which will undoubtedly be challenging as we are looking to more than double the size of
our business by then
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Resouwrces and relationships (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (continued)

We reman committed to openly commumcaung our CSR activity, achievements and challenges
Detailed informanon 1s included within our CSR reports which can be found on the Parmership
website, wunwjohnleunspartnership co uk.

Governance and risk

Effective governance and risk management are essential for ensunng that we are able to meet our
stakeholders’ needs in the long term Our Responsible Business Group, supported by steening
groups for the four areas of our CSR strategy environment, marketplace {customers, products and
suppliers wssues), workplace, and community, drive our CSR programmes forward so that we conunue
to embed CSR into our everyday business pracuces

We have a formal risk assessment which helps to decide where to focus our efforts and a
materiality process which follows the recommendations of the external Global Reporung Imuative
(GRI)

We engage with a wide range of stakeholders to increase our responsiveness to their concerns,
find new ways to reduce our impacts, balance business efficiency with economic success and,
ultimately, conunue to make the Partnership more compeutive, profitable and sustainable

Customers, products and suppliers

The Partnership 1s committed to selling responsibly sourced products, dealing fairly with its
supplers, and providing excellent value and unnvalled customer service

Customers and customer service

The Partnership believes in creating a long-term sustainable and successful business by engaging
with customers and acung 1n their interests Both Waitrose and John Lewis mamntain an ongoing
dialogue with therr customers through customer research and feedback, surveys, focus groups,
and regular mystery shopping

We are delighted that our Parners are recogmised for their service levels in many customer
satisfacuon surveys and awards In 2010 Waitrose came top for food and grocery m Verdict's
survey of over 6,000 shoppers and John Lewis was voted Britain's favourite retailer for the third
year runmng

Product provenance, safety and integrity

The traceabihity and safety of our products and ingredients 1s integral to customers’ trust 1n us
Our nigorous sourcing policies, inspecuons and farm assurance schemes ensure the highest
standards of quahty, safety, and environmental and animal welfare across our supply chamn

Dedicated technical departments work with our buying teams to make sure that every product we
sell 15 safe to use and that all our own-brand products comply with relevant consumer legislation
and safety standards

Sourcing

The Parwnership works with over 5,000 suppliers to sell quality products, supposted by ethical and
envnironmental standards and policies, paying them a fair price and helping them to reinvest in
their businesses

In Waitrose, Bnush sourcing and maintaining the highest standards of agricultural and
environmental management are key focus areas The Waitrose Local and Regional Sourcing
programme 15 one of the most established in the food retal sector - covering nearly 2,500 locally
and regionally sourced products from over 450 producers At the Partnership’s Leckford Estate in
Hampshire, we acuvely pracuse our pnnciples concerning sustainable agriculture and animal
welfare, and supply Waitrose shops with milk, poultry, mushrooms, apples, pears, ader, apple
Juice, eggs and honey In sourcng its products, Waitrose utthses a growing number of ceruficaton,
venification and assurance schemes For example, Waitrose 1s committed to ensuring that palm oil
used 1n own-brand products 1s from cerufied sustainable sources by 2012
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Waitrose works with suppliers to offer healthier everyday producis and to dnve nutrinonal quality
through appropnate ingredient selecuon, and supports educational imuatives such as the Royal
Horucultural Society’s Campaign for School Gardening

John Lews 1s also commutted to ensuring the integrity of its products Its “Bringing quality to hfe”
vision focuses on the raw matenals, manufacturing processes and durability of 1ts products, as well
as responsible product disposal opuons and increasing 1ts range of sustainable products such as
energy-efficient electrical appliances John Lewis produces its own-brand duvets, pillows,
furnishing fabnics alongside ready-made and made-to-measure curtains at its Herbert Parkinson
UK factory in Darwen

We require all our own-brand supphers to commit to the terms of our Responsible Sourcing Code
of Practice, which addresses standards on workers’ rights All our own-brand suppliers are
required to register on Sedex — a web based database that enables the management of ethical and
responsible practices within global supply chains In Waitrose, 70% of supplier sites are registered
In John Lews, 90% of suppliers and 79% of supplier sites are registered

Tradmng fairly

We trade fairly with our suppliers and support established schemes such as Fairtrade and
Traidcraft, which contribute to the sustainable development of the communiues where farmers
and workers live

Since 1ts establishment in 2005, the Waitrose Foundauon has raised more than £3million for over
200 projects 1n three countnies Imually focused m South Africa, the Foundation was extended mn
2009 to Kenya and Ghana

We launched the John Lewis Foundanon to suppliers in early 2010, and we are currently
idenufying opportunities for smtable educational or employment-based community projects that
will support and service the communities where John Lewis products are sourced

Community

Being a force for good has always been a part of the Partnership’s vision, and we are commtted to
making a posiive difference to the commumues where we do business This involves developing
strong, long-lasting partnerships at a local level, and devouing ume and energy to building
healthier communities

Charitable and commumity investment

In 2010/11, our Partnership-wide charitable and community contributions totalled £8 8m, which
1s equivalent to 2 4% of our profits before Partnership bonus and tax, as measured using the
London Benchmarking Group (LBG} model

The Waitrose Community Matters imuative donated over £2 7m in 2010/11 to a wide range of
chanues and community groups and John Lewis raised over £350,000 for 1ts chanty of the year,
Beating Bowel Cancer, in 2010 John Lewis will be supporting ‘help the homeless’ chariues in
2011 and local branches will choose appropnate charnues to support for their local area

The Partnership has an established Give As You Earn scheme with Shanng the Canng, the
fundraising arm of the Channes Aid Foundaton (CAF), to enable Partners to make tax-free
charitable donatons directly from their pay

Partner volunteering

Partners make a genuine difference 1o the community and local people’s hives by offering ther
ume and they themselves often develop new skills, grow in confidence and become more
motvated employees

The Golden Jubilee Trust (G]T) 1s the Partnership’s flagship employee volunteenng scheme
where any Partner can apply for a full- or part-ume volunteenng secondment with a UK registered
chanty for up 10 six months To celebrate the GJT’s 10th anniversary in 2010, the Parmership
funded 10 addinonal secondments
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Resources and relationshaips (continued)

Community (continued)

Town centre iImvestment

The Partnership believes 1t can play a vital role in creating vibrant and sustamable town centres
and aims to create comfortable, attracuve environments for customers, build stronger
relanonships with our neighbours and attract, train and recruit local people The Waitrose Effect
and John Lews Effect documents (available on the Partnership website) provide further detail on
this approach and this year we piloted a stakeholder engagement event in Manchester to build
local partnerships

We intend to play a key role in the East London regeneranon programme, by developing flagship
low carbon Waitrose and John Lews shops adjacent to the Olympic site Together they will create a
strong attraction for customers and generate around 800 jobs In addinon, we are commuitted to
offenng free employment traiming and at least 250 job opportumues to the long-term unemployed

Community Performance Indicators

2008-03 2009-10 2010-11
Total value of all charitable and community
investrnent contributions (£) 7.517,988 7,942,881 8,819,056
Community investment as a % of
profits before Partnership bonus and tax (%) 1 85% 2 59% 2 40%

" Includes, cash, m-kund, time and management costs as defined by the London Benchmarking Group model

Environment

One of the foundauons of our business 1s making the nght decisions for the long term The
Partnership has programmes, processes and targets in place to ensure we continue to reduce our
impact on the environment

Carbon reduction

The Partnership 1s commutted to reducing the carbon intensity of 1ts operauons, products and
services and to developing policies to support the UK Government’s long-term target to reduce
greenhouse gas emssions by 80% by 2050

In 2010, we have developed a carbon footprint reduction programme which includes a target to
reduce our operatnonal CO: equivalent emissions by 15% by the end of 2020/21 aganst a 2010/11
baseline This programme reflects the actual reductons we think are achievable in the next 10
years and includes some ambioous plans, such as developing renewable energy generanon centres
at our stores It also highlights the need for all our Partners to get involved and for Government
and businesses to work together The programme will be reviewed on an annual basis We
anncipate our emussions will nse for a couple of years before they decrease 1n response to the
implementatton of a range of emussions saving projects Our aspiration 1s to align our emissions
reductons with long term government targets

Sales grew by 10 6% 1n 2010/11, but our total emissions only increased by 4 6% to 541,956 tonnes
m the same period A large proportuon of this increase 1s aitnbutable to including new sources of
emissions this year such as water supply, water treatment and addinonal fuels used 1n our
buildings
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Energy
We continue to fit the latest technology into our new shops and existing estate and engage our

Parwers in helping deliver reductions locally We have improved the energy efficiency of our new
shops, new space opened 1n 2009 was on average 7% more efficient than our existing trading
estate The prolonged cold weather this winter impacted shop energy efficiency through increased
heaung usage As a result, shop energy use per square foot of trading floor area increased by 2%
in Waitrose and 1 5% n John Lewts

Transport

In many ways, our fleet 1s already ndustry-leading 1n carbon reducuon, but we continuously look
for improvements and we have several projects underway We are commutted to working with
vehicle manufacturers, legislators and planning authontes, to be at the forefront of developments
1n technologies and robust carbon reporting in transport

Against our target to reduce transport CO: equivalent emussions by 15% relauve to turnover by
2013, we have made an improvement of 5 9% since our 2005/06 baseline Progress against this
target has been impacted by growth n our store estate and an increase 1n customer delivenies plus
addinonal backhauling (which reduces overall distmbution mileage, but shufts the mileage from
supplier vehicles to our own) We remain comrmtted to reducing the environmental impact of our
operanons

Renewable energy and alternative fuels

We continue to consider all forms of renewable energy for our shops and head offices We have
been granted plannming permussion for a pilot energy centre on the Isle of Wight where a biomass
comined coohing, heating and power plant will provide energy to Waitrose East Cowes Residual
heat will also be used 1n an adjacent medical centre and 50 zerocarbon homes

Our aim 15 to devise a cohesive, long-term transport fuel pohcy using a range of technologies with
the potenual to become cost-effective alternatives to fossil fuels In the short term, we will be using
PPO (Pure Plant Onl) and biomethane and 1n ume, we expect to use hybnd vehicles for home
dehvenes

Refrigeration

Waitrose became the first major UK food retailer to stop using hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) for
refrigeration 1n all new and refitted shops from 2010 and this will be rolled cut to all shops by
2020, reducing our carbon footprint considerably Twenty six shops were using our new low
carbon refngeration system at the end of 2010 We have reduced our direct refrigeravon and
cooiing CO: equivalent emissions by 18% since last year and 20% since our 2008/09 baseline Qur
target 1s to achieve a 50% reducuon by 2012/13

Responsible development

Our Responsible Development Framework includes targets and guidance for the development
and refurbishment of our shops, offices and warehouses In setung outa framework we aim to
raise awareness, INcrease transparency, improve environmental performance and capture
performance data We are committed to continuing to review and develop our approach and 1n
2011, we will set new ambinous targets

New construcuon sites conunue to be registered and regularly assessed under the Considerate
Constructors Scheme All new shops alse conunue to be assessed by BREEAM, and we conunue to
achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ on the majonty of our projects and we are working towards
achieving ‘Outstanding’ on a number of projects
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Resources and relationships (continued)

Environment (continued)

Waste

We actively support waste reducton and recycling within our business, by our customers and
throughout our supply chain The Partnership diverted 81% of 1ts operanonal waste from landfill
last year

Waitrose endeavours to mimmmuse food waste through accurate ordering and shelf hfe
improvement, and its work with FareShare and Company Shop, which make use of waste food
Some food waste mevitably occurs and anaerobic digesuon has proven to be a sustainable solution
to avoid sending 1t to landfill, reduce our impact on the environment and create renewable
energy along the way In 2010, Waitrose was named 'Best retail or commercial food waste recycler’
at the Association for Orgamics Recychng (AFOR) Awards, recognising our pioneering work with
anaerobic digesuon

Packaging

Packaging 1s consistently identified as a key 1ssue for our customers and other stakeholders Under
the terms of the Packaging Waste Regulations, we are obliged to recover and recycle up to 80% of
our product packaging, depending on the material We support this legislation, and contribute
over £1 milhon a year towards a recyching comphance scheme that enables investment 1n domestc
collections and pubhc recyching centres

Both Waitrose and John Lew:s also remain commutted to reducing the number of single-use
carrier bags given out to customers through promoting reusable bags and communications
encouraging customers to reuse their exisung bags

In March 2010, Waitrose was one of 28 signatories for the second phase of the Courtauld
Commitment aiming to reduce the carbon impact of grocery packaging, household food, and
waste and product and packaging waste in the supply chain

Water

Operatonally, the Partnership does not use a lot of water, but we recognise the need to manage
our consumpuon In 2010, we installed addiuonal water meters 1n all exising and new shops,
allowing remote, accurate, real-ume water usage to be reported and used to inform our
programine of waterreducuon measures We have set a target to reduce shop water consumpuon
per square foot of trading floor area by 20% by 2013/14.
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Envwronment (continued)
Environment Performance Indicators

2008-09 2009-1¢ 2010-11
Total GHG emssions {COze) 508,287 517,805 541,956
Proportion of generated waste diverted
from landfill (%) 49 52 81
Waitrose shop energy efficiency
(kWh per sa ft trading floor area) 1169 1128 1151
John Lewss shop energy efficiency
{(kWh per sq ft trading floor area) 509 47 7 48 4
Transport related CO:e emissions
(tonnes/ £m sales) 906 885 8 88
Waitrose refnigeration and cooling direct
emissions {CO:e tonnes) 80,798 78,715 64,398

Looking Ahead

We aim to more accurately measure the value and impacts of our community activity and are
considenng creating new Partnership-wide employee volunteering opportunities to enable large-
scale Partner involvement in the communities where we do business

We will implement our programme to dehver absolute reductions i operanonal CO: emissions by

202(/21 and will look to progress the sourcing of cerufied sustainable palm o1l, soy and cotton
We also recognise that we can play an important part in helping our Partners and customers hive

more sustainably and we mntend to act on this
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Rusks and uncertainities

Our nsk management strategy reinforces the value of acuvely managing nisk, rather than
eliminanng 1it, and thereby ensures a disciplined approach to balancing nsk and reward The
following prowvides an overview of the pnincipal nsks and uncerranues facing the Partnership
along with mingating acuons in place

Economic
As a business based almost solely in the UK, the Partnership 1s particularly exposed to any econemc
downrurn which could affect consumer spending, most notably in the Department Store business

However, the soength and diversity of the Waitrose and John Lewis busmesses, alongside our
growing multi-channel strategy together with developing services businesses, form an effective
means of managing economic risk 1n the current retall environment Our range and diversity of
products and services brning us mto competuon with a wide range of UK and internatonal
retailers 1n largely mature market segments with low underlying growth For this reason we
continually focus on mamntaiming our pre-eminent product quahity, customer service and supplier
relationships, whalst retaining our competitive pricing, enabling us to maintain our appeal

Financial nisk

The principal financial nsk which we face 15 the atahity 10 generate and access sufficient funds 10

satisfy our business needs, to meet our Partners’ expectanons for Partnership bonus and to miagate

against any adverse financial impact resulung from nisks including those idenufied in our business

planning process crystalhsing Other finanaal nsks and nmutigations are covered 1n more detail below

and 1n note 23 to the accounts

*  Funding and liquudity
Liquidity requirements are managed in line with short and long term cash flow forecasts
linked to our trading patterns, business plans and budgets, and reviewed against the
Partnership’s debt portfoho and matunty profile Details of the Partnership’s borrowings,
together with their interest rates and maturity profiles, are also provided 1n note 26 to the
accounts

*  Interest rate risk
In order to manage the nisk of interest rate fluctuations the Partnership targets a rauo of
fixed and floatung rate debt 1n line with 1ts treasury policy Exposures to interest rate
fluctuauons are managed using interest rate swaps Details of the Partnership’s borrowings
and nterest rate exposures are provided 1n note 26 to the accounts

*  Foreign currency risk
The Parmership uses dervatives to manage exposures (o movements in exchange rates
ansing from transactions with foreign suppliers Foreign currency exposures are hedged
primanly using forward foreign exchange contracts Details are pronided 1n note 23 to the
accounts

¢ Credt risk
The Partnership has no significant customer credit risk Cash deposits and other financial
Instruments give rise to credit risk on the amounis due from bank counterparnes These risks
are managed by restricting such transactions to counterparties with a credit ranng not less
than a Standard & Poor’s equivalent *A’ rating

*  Capatal nsk
The Partnership maintains a capital structure which 15 consistent with an investment grade
credit ranng

. Energy risk
The Partnership operates risk management processes for the procurement of energy
associated with 1ts activities
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¢  Insurable risk
The Partnership’s captive insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited based in
Guernsey, provides remnsurance of the Parmership’s employer’s, pubhic and vehicle
third party iability insurances and of the Partership’s healthcare insurance cover It
also insures ServicePlan Limited and reinsures Landmark Insurance Company
Limited, thard party prowviders of extended warranty products to customers of John
Lews

Pensions risk

Our pension obhigation effecuvely represents our longest term risk and 1s of critical
mmportance The Pension Fund assets are held 1n separate funds admimistered by the
Trustees, who delegate day-to-day management of these funds to a number of investment
managers Our pension arrangements and funding positon are explained in note 24 We
have executed a deficit mitigation strategy over the past six years which means our Pension
Fund on an actuanal basis 1s now 1n surplus We actively monitor the outlook of asset and
habilites performance agamnst the assumptions set both on an accounting and actuanal
basis and will develop a formal framework for managing the Financial and Investment Risk
of the Pension Fund over the course of the coming vear The hquidity risk 1s managed by
ensurning the annual contribution to the Fund more than covers the outgoings

Input cost inflation

Input cost price inflation 15 a risk to our businesses and as a result we closely momnitor the
environment 1o ensure that we are obtaiming the best value, at a fair price, for products
and raw materials that we source We also continue to focus on delivering operational
efficiencies, which will help offset these increases, through a number of efficiency
programmes and imtiatives as well as through our financial hedging strategy for foreign
exchange and energy

Human resources

The successful delivery of key strategic projects, such as the implementaton of new
systems, the reengineening of business processes or major infrastructure development, 1s of
paramount importance to the Parmership as they improve the efficiency and resihence of
our operations whilst providing a strong platform for funire growth The successful
dehvery of these projects depends on the resources and skills sets available to the
Partnership Qur Personnel strategy aims to ensure that the Partnership possesses the
appropnate skills and resources required to deliver these projects Resources are
continually reviewed and aligned with the business critical priorities Skills gaps are
addressed through firstclass training and development of Partners When the required
skills are not available due to resources constraints or their highly specialised nature they
are bought in by the Partnership

Customer offer

Broadening our mulu-channel offer and extending our customer base are key to the
Parmership’s growth ambiuons We also recogmise that the pre-erminent quahty of our
products and customer service 1s criucal to the Partnership’s success, and a detenoration
of these would impact our business The Partnership has a clear mulachannel strategy

to extend 1ts reach whilst leveraging our onhne positon with our established footprint

In addition, we regularly review our customer and service strategies that tnclude ongoing
category and range reviews, whilst continuing to invest i our store environments and our
mulu-channel offer

Health and safety

The Partnership 1s committed to going about 1ts business 1n a way that avoids, so far as s
reasonably practicable, causing harm to people or property, and to promoung, through 1ts
extensive occupanonat health service, the wellbeing of 1ts workforce This commitment
underpins our approach to health and safety, with Board level responsimlity being carned
by the Director of Personnel, supported by specialist technical adwisers in safety and
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Rusks and uncertainties (continued)

occupauonal health employed within the two divisions We have set ourselves the on-going
target of reducing the causes of incidents through conunuous improvements to our nisk
management process We cannot expect to ehminate health and safety nisk totally from the
workplace but our current prionty 1s to ensure that management at all levels know and
understand the risks within their areas of responsiblity We have revisited, across the
business, the quahty and effectiveness of our nsk assesstnent and incident invesugation
processes and the completeness of our health and safety management systems We have
enhanced our systems and measures which support a more proactive approach to meeting
our commitments to the safety and well being of our Partners, supphers and customers

Business continmty and disaster recovery

Any sigmficant incident, such as a terrorist attack, pandemic flu outbreak, mformauon
loss, e<crime, or an event which impacts upon our mamframe systems or key support
funcaons, could severely compromise our ability to trade We keep our Business Continuity
capability under review and continue to refine it for all sigmficant business areas

Other significant nsks and uncertamties
Regulatory, pohucal, fraud, comphance and operational risks are other significant risks
and uncertainties that face the Partnership for which mitigating actions are 1n place

Compliance statement

This review has been prepared i accordance with secuon 417 of the Companies Act 2006
The review’s intent 1s to provide information to Partners, shareholders and the
Partnership’s other stakeholders It should not be rehied upon by any other party or for
any other purpose

Where this review contains forward-looking statements, these are made by the Directors in
good faith based on the informauon available to them at the ume of their approval of this
report These statements should be treated with cauton due to the inherent uncertainues
underlying any such forward-looking information

Other information

Addiuonal financial and non-financial information, including press releases and year end
presentauons, can be accessed on our website, wiww johnleunspartnership co uk
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Darectors’ report

Principal activity and business review

The pnnapal acuwity of the group 1s retaihing The company controls the businesses listed 1n
note 34, compnsing 28 John Lewis department stores, 4 John Lewis at home stores,

Johnlewis com, 235 Waitrose supermarkets, 15 Waitrose convenience stores, waitrose com and
business to business contracts in the UK and abroad and ancillary manufactuning activities A
review of the busmess and hikely future developments 1s included separately in the Chairman’s
Statement and Business Review on pages 2 to 26, which forms part of this Directors’ report

Governance of John Lewss plc within the John Lewis Partnership

John Lews plc, as the principal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership plc, falls within the
governance auspices of the Parmnership, details of which can be found on pages 29 10 35 of the
annual report and accounts of John Lewis Partnership plc

Employees

The consututuon of the John Lews Partnership provides for the democranc involvement of
employees, known as Partners, as ‘co-owners’ of the business They are therefore provided wath
full informauon on all aspects of the business operauons and are encouraged to have an acuve
interest in promotng its commercial success Elected councils and forums at all levels of the
business provide regular opportunities for management to report to Parmers This prowides
opportunities to question management on any subject, while an open system of journalism both
contnbutes to effecuve accountability and prowvtdes a means of shaning informanon extensively
with all Partners Partners also recerve an annual distribution of the profits of the business
through Partnership bonus

All employees can benefit from the Partnership’s traming and development policies The
Partmership recruits people with disabiliies to suitable vacancies on ment Where disability
occurs during the period of employment, every effort 1s made to contunue to provide suntable
employment with the provision of appropnate training

Directors
Directors of the company at the date of this report are listed on page 28

Directors’ responsibilities

The Statement of directors’ responsibilines in relaton to the financial statermnents 15 set out
on page 85

Directors’ interests

Under the consutution of the Partnership, the directors, as employees of John Lews plc, are
necessanly interested in the 612,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares in John Lewis Partnershup plc
which are held in trust for the benefit of employees of John Lewts plc and of certain other
companies

No director has, or had, a matenal interest in any contract or arrangement to which the company
or any subsidiary 1s, or was, a party

Treasury and tax policy and financial risk management

The Parmership Board approves the group’s treasury, tax and financial risk management policies,
which are delegated to the Partnership’s Finance Director and Tax and Treasury team to
implement and control Further details of the group’s financial nsk management arrangements
are pronided 1n the Bustness Review and note 23 to the financial statements

Payments to supphers

The group's pohicy on the payment of 1ts suppliers 1s to agree terms of payment 1n advance
and, provided a suppher fulfils the agreement, to pay promptly in accordance with those terms
The group’s wade creditors ar 29 January 2011 were equivalent to 24 days of average purchases
(2010 22 days)
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Drrectors’ report

continued

Charitable and political donations

The Partnership donated £4,695,000 (2010 £3,943,000} for chantable purposes during the year,
comprising £4,170,000 (2010 £3,343,000) for welfare causes and £525,000 (2010 £600,000) for
music and arts, learning and the environment. In addition, we prowvided substanual financial and
practical support 1o causes in the commumbtes where we trade, as detailed on pages 19 and 20 of
the Business Review The Partnership made no pohtical donauons

Retail bond 1ssue

On 7 March 2011 the group launched a retail bond, a five year imnvestment product offering a
fixed annual return of 4 5% n cash and a further 2% m John Lews Partnershap gft vouchers The
retail bond 1ssue closed on 18 March 2011 after reaching its 1nvestmenz target of £50m, and was
1ssued on 6 April 2011

Drvidends
Dividends on Preference Shares for 2011 were £125,000 (2010 £125,000) and a dividend of
£125,000 (2010 £125,000) was pard on ordinary shares

Gomng concern

The Directors, after reviewing the group’s operating budgets, investment plans and financing
arrangements, consider that the company and the group have adequate resources to confinue n
operauon for the foreseeable future A full descripuon of the group’s busmess acovities, financial
positon, cash flows, hquidity posinon, commatted facilines and borrowing positon, together with
the factors likely to affect its future development and performance, 15 set out in the Business
Review and 1n the notes to the accounts The company and group have, at the date of this report,
sufficzent financing available for their esimated requirements for the foreseeable future and,
accordingly, the Directors are satsfied that it 1s appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements

Auditors and disclosure of mformation to auditors
A resolunon to reappoint PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors and to authornise the directors
to fix their remuneranon will be proposed at the annual general meeung

The directors of the group have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in

order to make themselves aware of any information needed by the group’s auditors in connection
with preparmg their report and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information So far
as the directors are aware there 15 nto such information of which the group’s auchtors are unaware

For and by Order of the Board
Margaret Casely-Hayford
Secretary

7 Apnil 2011
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Consolidated 1ncome

statement
for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to

29 January 30 January

2011 2010

Notes Continuing operations £m £m
2 Gross sales 8,206 3 74215
2 Revenue 7,361 8 6,734 6
Cost of sales (4,878.7) (4,460 4)
Gross profit 2,483 1 2,274 2
Other operating income 537 511

3 Operabng expenses (2,107 5) (1,937 3)
2 Operating profit 429.3 3880
4  Finance costs (67 8) (87 6)
4 Finance income 61 58
Profit before Partnership bonus and tax 367 6 306 2
Partnership bonus (194 5) (151 3)

5  Profit before tax 1731 154 9
6  Taxation (45 6) (48 3)
Profit for the year 1275 106 6

The notes on pages 40 to 84 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of

comprehensive income/(expense)

for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Notes Consolidated £m £m
Profit for the year 127 5 106 6

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

25  Actuanal gainf{loss) on defined benefit

pension schemes 338.7 (160 4)
6  Movement of deferred tax on pension schemes (141 4) 223
6  Movement of current tax on pension schemes 420 226
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 16 (9 3)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 3684 {18 2)
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 29 January 2011
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
11 Intangible assets 1114 925
12 Property, plant and equipment 3,622 6 33810
15 Trade and other receivables 41 4 425
22 Deferred tax asset - 419
3,775 4 3,567 9
Current assets
14 Inventortes 422 0 3990
15 Trade and other recewvables 2107 167 4
Current tax receivable 171 -
24  Denvative financial instruments 86 136
16 Cash and cash equivalents 512.7 5600
1,171.1 1,140 0
Total assets 4946 5 4,707 9
Current habihities
18 Borrowings and overdrafts (165 3) {115 6)
19 Trade and other payables (1,087 5) (928 5)
Current tax payable - (16)
20 Finance lease llabilities (0 8) Q7)
21 Provisions (85 0) (68 5)
24 Denvative financial instruments {10) (2 4)
(1,339 6) (1,117 3)
Non-current liabilibes
18 Borrowings (819 2) (787 2)
19 Trade and other payables (65 6) (49 8}
20 Finance lease habihities (28 O) (28 5)
21 Prowsions {112 9) (116 3}
Deferred tax habihties (94.7) -
25 Retirement benefit obhigations (414 0) (904 6)
(1,534 4) {1,886 4)
Total habilities (2,874 0) (3,003 7)
Net assets 2,072 5 1,704 2
Equity
27 Share capita! 67 67
Share premium 03 03
Other reserves 14 (02}
Retained earnings 2,064 1 1,697 4
Total equity 2,0725 1,704 2

Approved by the Board on 7 Apnl 2011
Charlie Mayfield

Marisa Cassom

Directors

John Lews plc
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Balance sheet of the company

as at 29 January 2011
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
11 Intangible assets 102 2 87 4
12 Propenrty, plant and equipment 8510 8331
15 Trade and other receivables 41 4 A2 4
13 Investments 1,053 9 9856
22 Deferred tax asset 77 8 1991
2,126 3 2,147 6
Current assets
14 {inventories 245 5 2335
15 Trade and other receivables 87.7 66 0
Current tax recewvable 368 329
24 Denvative financial instruments 86 136
16 Cash and cash equivalents 424 6 476 8
803 2 8228
Total assets 29295 2,970 4
Current ltabihties
18 Borrowings and overdrafts (164 1) {(1150)
19 Trade and other payables {1,081.5) (977 4}
20 Finance lease habities (02) (0 2}
21 Provisions (77 3} (59 8)
24 Denvative financial instruments {10} (2 4)
{1,324 1) (1,154 8)
Non-current habilities
18 Borrowings (819 2) (787 2}
19 Trade and other payables (60 0) (47 5}
20 Finance lease habilities (14 7) (14 8)
21 Provisions (98 2} {101 6)
25 Retirement benefit obhigations (316 0) (809 6)
(1,308 1) (1,760 7)
Total habilities (2,632 2) (2,915 5)
Net assets 297 3 54 9
Equity
27 Share capital 67 67
Share premium 03 03
Other reserves - (16)
Retained earnings 2903 495
Total equity 297 3 54 9

Approved by the Board on 7 Apni} 2011

Charhe Mayfield
Marisa Cassoni
Directors
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Consolidated statement of changes
in equity

Jor the year ended 29 January 2011

Share Share Capital  Hedging Retained Total
capital premum reserve reserve  earmmgs equity
Consohdated £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 31 January 2009 67 03 14 77 17064 1,7225
Profit for the year - - - - 1066 1066
Actuanal loss on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - (160 4) (1604)
Tax on above items recogmsed
in equity - - - - 44 9 44 9
Fair value losses on cash flow
hedges - - - (81} - 831
- transfers to property, plant
and equipment - - - (13) - (13)
— transfers to inventortes - - - 01 - 01
Dimvidends - - - - (01) cn
Balance at 30 January 2010 67 03 14 (16) 1,697 4 1,704 2
Profit for the year - - - - 1275 1275
Actuanal gamn on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - 3387 3387
Tax on above items recognised
In equity - - - - (89 4) (99 4)
Fair value losses on cash flow
hedges - - - (1n - {1 1)
— transfers to property, plant
and equipment ~ - - - - -
— transfers to inventones - - - 27 - 27
Dwidends - - - - (0 1) (0 1}
Balance at 29 January 2011 67 03 14 - 2,0641 20725

Retained earnings compnse £1,648 7m (2010 £1,272 4m) of distnnbutable and £415 5m
(2010 £425 0m) of non distnbutable reserves
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Company statement of changes

mn equly

Jfor the year ended 29 January 2011

Share Share  Hedging Retained Total
capital premium reserve  earnings equity
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 31 January 2009 67 03 77 1877 2024
Loss for the year - - - (226) (2286)
Actuanal loss on defined benefit
penslon schemes - - - (1604) (1604}
Tax on above items recognised
in equity - - - 449 44 5
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges - - 8 1) - (8 1)
— Transferred to property, plant
and equipment - - {13} - (1 3)
- Transfers to inventories - - 0l - 01
Dwidends - - - 01 (01}
Balance at 30 January 2010 67 c3 (16) 495 549
Loss for the year - - - 38 (3 8)
Actuanal gain on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - 3449 3449
Tax on above items recognised
In equity - - - (1002} (1002}
Fair value losses on cash flow hedges - - (11 - (11
— Transferred to property, plant
and equipment - - - - -
- Transfers to inventones - - 27 - 27
Dividends - - - On (0 1)
Balance at 29 fanuary 2011 67 03 - 2903 2973
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Statement of consolidated

cash flows
Jor the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
28 Cash generated from operations 757.4 657 3
Net taxation paid (27.1) (39 8)
Partnership bonus paid (151.2) (124 3)
Special contribution to the Pension Scheme (150 0) -
Finance costs paid (2.0 {11)
Net cash generated from operating activities 427 1 492 1
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (447.9) (410 3)
Purchase of intangible assets {43 5) (332)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.7 71
Finance income received 30 54
Net cash used n investing activities (484 7) (431 00
Cash flows from financing achivities
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds (76 7) (105)
Payment of capital element of finance leases 04) (0 6)
Payments to preference shareholders 01) on
Cash mflow from borrowings 1378 2727
Net cash generated from financing activities 60 6 2615
Increase in net cash and cash equivalents 30 3226
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pertod 444 4 121 8
Net cash and cash eguivalents at end of period 447 4 444 4
16 Net cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash 84 2 841
Short term deposits 428.5 4759
Bank overdrafts (65 3) (115 6)
447 4 444 4
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Statement of company

cash flows
for the year ended 29 January 2011

Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Notes £m £m
28 Cash generated from operations 3076 182 8
Net taxation recewved 233 161
Partnership bonus paid (74 5) (47 B6)
Special contnibution to the Pension Scheme (150 0) -
Finance costs paid (10) -
Net cash generated from operating activities 1054 1513
Cash flows from investing actvities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (111 2) (137 8
Purchase of intangible assets (37.8) (31 2)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment Q7 186
Dividends received 20 30
Loans (advanced to)/repaid by group companies {24 3) 432
Finance income received 30 50
Net cash used in investing activities (167.6) (99 2)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid in respect of bonds (76.7) (10 5)
Payment of capital element of finance leases (01) o1
Payments to preference shareholders (01} (1)
Cash inflow from borrowings 137 8 2727
Net cash generated from financing activities 609 2620
Increase in net cash and cash equivalents (13) 3141
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pencd 361.8 477
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 3605 3618
16 Net cash and cash equivalents compnise:
Cash 280 329
Short term deposits 396 6 4439
Bank overdraft (64 1) (115 0)
360 5 3618
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Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies ‘

Accounting convention and basis of consolhdation

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convenuon, with the exception of certain
land and buildings which are included at therr revalued amounts and financial assets and financial
habilities (including denvative instruments) valued at fair value through profit and loss, and 1n
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporung under
IFRS The consolhidated income statement and balance sheet include the accounts of the company
and all its subsidiary undertakings

Business components that represent major lines of business or geographical areas of operations
are recogmsed as discontinued 1if the operanons have been disposed of, are being abandoned or
meet the critena to be classafied as held for sale

The preparation of consohdated financial statements in conformity with International Financiat
Reporung Standards requires the use of estumates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and habihues at the date of the consolhidated financial statemnents and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duning the reporung period Although these
estmates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or achons, actual
results ulumately may differ from those esumates

These policies have been consistently apphed to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

The following standards, amendments and interpretanons were adopted by the group from
81 January 2010 and have not had a sgnificant impact on the group’s profit for the year, equaty or
disclosures

- [IFRS 3 (revised) ‘Business combinauons’
- IAS 27 (revised) 'Consolidated and separate financial statements’
— Annual improvements 2009

—~ Amendments to IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recogmition and measurement’ on eligible
hedged 1tems

There are a number of new accounting standards and amendments to existing standards that
have been published and are applicable for the group’s accounung periods begmning on or after
30 January 2011 or later peniods, but which the group has not adopted early These are as follows

— IFRS 9 ‘Finanaal Instruments’

- 1AS 24 (rewised) ‘Related party disclosures’

~ Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financaal insoruments Disclosures’ on derecogniuon
- Amendment to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’ on deferred 1ax

— Amendment to IFRIC 14, ‘IAS 19 — The hmit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interactions’

These are not expected to have a matenal impact on the group’s profit or equuty for future years,
but may affect disclosures
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Gross sales and revenue
Gross sales are the amounts receiwvable by the group for goods and services supplied to customers,
net of discounts but including sale or return sales and VAT

Sales of goods and services are recognised as revenue when the goods have been delivered or the
services rendered Revenue in respect of ‘sale or return sales’ which represents concession income
is stated at the value of the margin that the group receives on the transaction Staff discounts

are deducted from revenue Revenue 1s recognised n respect of sales under bill and hold
arrangements when the goods are segregated for the customer’s benefit at their request, and
made available for delivery Sales of gift vouchers are treated as future habihities, and revenue 15
recognised when the gift vouchers are redeemed against a later transaction Certain compames
within the group sell products with a right of return, and expenence 1s used to esumate and
provide for the value of such returns at the time of sale

Inventory valuation

Inventory 15 stated at the lower of cost, which 15 computed on the basis of average unit cost, and
net realisable value Inventory excludes merchandise purchased by the group on a sale or return
basis, where the group does not have the nsks and rewards of ownership

Employee benefits

The group’s principal renrement benefit scheme 1s a defined benefit pension fund with assets held
separately from the group The cost of providing benefits under the scheme 1s determined using
the projected unit credit actuarial valuanon method, which measures the hability based on service
completed and allowing for projected future salary increases The current service cost, which 1s
the increase 1n the present value of the reurement benefit obhganon resulung from employee
service in the current year, and gains and losses on settlements and curtalments, which arise an
transactions that elirmnate part or all of the benefits provided or when there are amendments to
terms such that a significant element of future service will no longer qualbfy for benefits or will
qualify only for reduced benefits, are included 1in operaung expenses in the consolidated income
statement Past service costs are similarly included where the benefits have vested, otherwise they
are amorused on a straightline basis over the vesting period

The expected return on assets of funded defined benefit pension plans and the imputed mnterest
on pension plan liabihties are included in finance costs

Differences between the actual and expected return on assets, changes m the reurement benefit
obligaten due to expenence and changes in actuanal assumpuons are included as actuanal gains or
losses 1n the consohdated statement of comprehensive expense and income in full in the perod 1n
whach they arise

There are a number of unfunded pension liabihities, where the actuanally assessed costs of
providing the benefit are charged to the income statement There are no assets supporung these
arrangements

The group has a scheme to provide up to six months paid leave after 25 years’ service {long service
leave) The costs of providing the benefits under the scheme 1s determined actuanatly The current
service cost 1s included 1n operatng expenses in the consohdated income statement The financing
elements of long service leave are included in finance costs 1n the consohdated income statement

Property valuation

The group’s freehold and long leasehold properues were last valued by the directors, after
consultation with CB Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, at 31 January 2004, at fair value This
valuation was as at transiuon to IFRS These values have been incorporated as deemed cost, subject
to the requirement to test for impairment, 1n accordance with 1AS 36 The group decided not to
adopt a policy of revaluation since 31 January 2004

Other assets are held at cost
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Notes to the accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Depreciation

No depreciation 1s charged on freehold land, leasehold land with over 100 years to expiry, and
assets 1n the course of construction Depreciation 1s calculated for all other assets to wnite off the
cost or valuation, less residual value, in equal annual instalments over thewr expected useful hfe,
at the following rates

Freehold and long leasehold buildings - 2% to 4%

Other leaseholds — over the remamning penod of the lease

Buildings fixtures — 2 5% 1o 10%

Fixtures and fitungs (including vehicles and IT equipment) — 10% to 33%

Property residual values are assessed as the price in current terms that a property would be
expected to realise, if the buildings were at the end of their useful economic hife The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date

Leased assets

Assets used by the group which have been funded through finance leases on terms that transfer to
the group substanually all the nisks and rewards of ownership are capitalised at the incepuon of
the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the mimimum lease
payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
hability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaning balance of the habihty The
mterest element of finance lease rentals 1s charged to the income statement Capitalised leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the esumated useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where the group does not retain substanually all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases Operating lease rental payments, other than contingent
rentals, are recognised as an expense 1n the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term Contingent rentals are recogmsed as an expense in the mcome statement when
mcurred

Lease premiums and inducements are recognised in current and non-current assets or ltabilines
accordingly, and amornsed or released on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Sub-lease income 1s recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the sub-lease term, less
allowances for sitnauons where recovery 1s doubtful

Taxation

The charge for current income tax 15 based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which
are not taxed or are disallowed It1s calculated using tax rates in legislation that has been enacted
or substanuvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s accounied for using the balance sheet hability method n respect of
temporary differences ansing from differences between the tax bases of assets and habihties

and therr carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax ansing from the imual
recogninon of an asset or liabihty in a transaction, other than a business combinauon, that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, 15 not recogmsed

In pnnaple, deferred tax habihities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset
1s realised or the hatnhty 1s settled Deferred tax 1s charged or eredited in the income statement,
except when 1t relates to items credited or charged direcily to shareholder's equuty, 1n which case
the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in shareholder’s equaty

Goodwill

Goodwll represents the excess of the cost of a business combinauon over the group’s share of the
fair value of 1denufiable net assets of the business acquired at the date of acquusiuon Prior to
February 1998 goodwill ansing on the acquisiton of subsidhanes was witten off to reserves at the
tume of acquisinon The group has taken the IFRS | exempuen 1n respect of the wreatment of
goodwll and, accordingly, goodwill on previous acquisittons has not been restated
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets, comprising both purchased and internally developed computer software, are
carned at cost less accumulated amortusauon and imparments The cost of internally developed
software, including all directly attnibutable costs necessary to produce and prepare the system for
use, 1s capitahsed where the development meets the critenia for capitahsauon required by IAS 38
Internally developed software assets that are not yet 1n use are reviewed at each reporting date

to ensure that the development sull meets the critena for capitahsanion, and 1s not expected to
become wmpaired or abortive Once available for use, the purchased or internally developed
software 1s amorused over 1ts useful economic hife, which 15 deemed to be between 3 and 7 years

Financial mstruments

The group uses denvative financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to fluctuations 1n foreign
exchange rates and interest rates Dernvauve financial mstruments used by the group mclude interest
rate swaps, forward currency contracts and foreign currency swaps Hedge accounnng has been
adopted for denivative financial instruments where possible Such denvatve financial instruments are
measured at fair value The fair value of a denvanve finanaal insorument represents the difference
between the value of the outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuanon calculated
using the forward rates of exchange and interest rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

In order to qualify for hedge accountng, the relationship between the item being hedged and the
hedging mstrument 1s documented 1n advance of entenng mto the hedge, and assessed to show that
the hedge will be highly effecuve on an ongoing basis This effectiveness tesing 1s reperformed at
each period end to ensure that the hedge remams highly effective

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument matures, 1s sold, terminated
or exercised, the designation 1s revoked or 1t no longer qualifies for hedge accounting For
dervatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounung, any gains or losses ansing from changes
in fair value are taken directly to the income statement

A fair value hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or lability
Dernvative financial instruments gualifying for fair value hedge accounting are prinaipally interest
rate SWH.pS

A cash flow hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to vanability of cash flows that are either aunbutable
to a particular nisk assocrated with a recognised asset or habihty, or a hughly probable forecast
transacton The effective poruon of changes in the intnnsic fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recogmised 1n equity All other changes in fair
value are recogmised immedsately 1n the income statement with other gams or losses Amounts
accumulated 1 equnty are recycled to the income statement n the penods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss Denvauve financial insiruments quahifying for cash flow hedge accounung
are principally forward currency contracts

Borrowings
Borrowings are measured at amortised cost Where there 1s an effective related fair value hedge,
the movement in the fair value attributable to the hedged nsk 1s separately disclosed

Loan arrangement costs i respect of debt are capitahsed and amortised over the life of the debt
at a constant rate Finance costs are charged to the income statement, based on the effecuve
interest rate of the associated borrowings

Insurance

The group’s capuve insurance company, JLP Insurance Limited, provides reinsurance of the

group’s employer’s, pubhc and vehicle third party hability insurances, and of the group’s

heatlthcare insurance cover It also insures ServicePlan Limited, and remsures Landmark Insurance

Company Limited, third party providers of extended warranty products 1o customers of John

Lewis For the hability tnsurances, the results of each underwriung year are esumated ai the year

end using independent actuanal assessments, when any profits or losses ansing are recogmsed

Other classes are also accounted for on an annual basis, with unearned premiums attnbuted

to unexpired periods of insurance at the year end
|
\
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Impairment

Assets that are subject to amorusanon or deprecianon are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or aircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss

15 recognmised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount,
the latter bemng the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use Value 1n use
calculations are performed using cash flow projecuons, discounted at a pre-tax rate which reflects
the asset specific nsks and the time value of money

Exceptional items

Items which are both matenal and nen-recurring are presented as exceptional items within their
relevant consolidated income statement category The separate reporung of excepuonal items
helps provide an indicatton of the group’s underlying business performance Events which may
give rise to the classificanon of items as excepuonal include gains or losses on the disposal of
properties or investments, individually significant restructuring costs and asset impairments
Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the group has an obhgation n respect of a past event, 1t 1s more
likely than not that payment {or a non cash settlement) will be required to settle the obhigation
and where the amount can be rehably esumated Provisions are discounted when the time value
of money 1s considered material

Partnership bonus

Partmership bonus, determined 1n relation to the results for the previous financial year, 1s paid to
Partners each March No provision 1s made for Parmership bonus at the half year as the majonty
of the group’s profit 1s earned 1n the second half year and, unul the annual profit 1s known, 1t 18
not possible to make an esumate of the hability A prowvision for this bonus 1s included in the year
end accounts, with the amount confirmed by the Board shortly after the year end

Offsetting

Balance sheet netung only occurs to the extent that there 1s the legal abiity and intenuen to settle
net As such, bank overdrafts are presented 1n current habihtes to the extent that there 1s no
intention to offset with any cash balances

Foreign currencies

Transacuons denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date
of the transacuon Foreign currency assets and habihues held at the year end are translated into
sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and 1n hand and short-term
deposits with maturities of less than 90 days In the consolhdated cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivalents compnse cash and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of bank overdrafts

Net debt
Net debt mcorporates the group’s borrowings, bank overdrafts, faur value of denvatives and
obligauons under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other recervables
Trade and other recervables are stated at amorused cost less allowances for sitnaunons where
recovery 1s doubtful Such allowances are based on an individual assessment of each recevable

Investments
Investments are valued at cost, less allowances for impairment

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are conunuaily evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are beheved to be reasonable
under the circumstances
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The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make esumates and
assumptions concerning the future The resulung accountung estimates will, by defimiuon,
be likely to differ from the related actual results The esumates and assumptons that have
a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
habilites within the next financial year are discussed below

Retrrement benefits

Pension accounung requires certain assumptions to be made 1n order to value our
obligations and to determine the charges to be made to the income statement These figures
are parucularly sensiive to assumptions for discount rates, mortahty, inflahon rates and
expected long-term rates of return on assets Details of assumptons are given 1n note 25

Prowvistons

Provisions recognised at the balance sheet date are detailed in note 21 and include amounts
for long leave, insurance claims, service guarantee costs, reorganisation costs, accrued
holiday pay and property related costs

Although provisions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted to reflect management’s
best current esimates the judgemental nature of these 1tems means that future amounts
settled may be different from those provided

Imparrment

The group 15 requuired to test whether assets in use in operauons have suffered any
mmpairment The recoverable amounts of cash generatng units have been determined based
on the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use The calculanon of value 1n use
requires the esumanon of future cash flows expected to anse from the continumng operation
of the cash generaung umt and the selection of a smitable discount rate m order to calculate
the present value Given the degree of subjectivity involved, actual outcomes could vary
significantly from these esumates

2 Segmental reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’, an operaung segment 1s defined as a
business actvity whose operaung results are reviewed by the chief operaung decison maker
(‘CODM’) and for which discrete informaton 1s available The group’s CODM is the
Partnership Board

The group’s operating segments have been idenufied as John Lews, Waitrose and Corporate
and other Corporate and other principally includes corporate and shared service overheads,
transformation costs and the new Partnership Services division set up costs The operaung
profit of each segment 1s reported after charging relevant corporate and shared service costs
based on the business segments’ usage of corporate facihtes and services
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2 Segmental reporting {continued)

Corporate
Wartrose John Lewis and other Group
29 Januvary 2011 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 4,974 6 3,2317 - 8,206 3
Adjustment for sale or
return sales - (116 0) - (116.0)
Value added tax (274.7) (453 8) - (728 5)
Revenue 4,699 9 2,661 9 - 7,361.8
Operating profit excluding property profits 2730 201.2 (46 8) 427 4
Property profits 19 - - 19
Operating profit 2749 201.2 (46 8) 4293
Finance costs - - (67.8) (67 8)
Finance income - - 61 6.1
Partnership bonus - - (194.5) (194 5)
Profit before tax 274.9 201 2 (303 0) 1731
Taxation - - (45 6) (45 6}
Profit after tax from continuing operations 2749 201 2 (348 6) 127.5
Segment assets 2,520 2 1,597.9 8284 4,946 5
Segment habilities (4950 8} (467.7) (1,9155) (2,8740)
Net assets 2,029 4 1,130.2 (1,0871) 2,0725
Other segment items
- Depreciation 1221 81.2 12.2 2155
-~ Amortisation of intangible assets 84 86 70 240
- Capital expenditure - property, plant and
equipment 3338 975 17 9 449 2
— Capital expenditure - intangible assets 202 220 1.3 435
— Movement in provisions (2.0) 94 57 13.1
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2 Segmental reporting {continued)

Corparate
Waitrose John Lews and cther Group
30 January 2010 £m £m £m £m
Gross sales 45323 2,889 2 - 74215
Adjustment for sale or
return sales - (116 5) - {116 5)
Value added tax (2151} (355 3) - (670 4)
Revenue 4,317 2 2417 4 - 6,734 6
Operating profit excluding property profits 2666 1647 {43 5) 3878
Property profits 02 - - 02
Operating profit 2668 164 7 (43 5} 3880
Finance costs - - (87 &) (87 6)
Finance income - - 58 58
Partnership bonus - - (151 3} {151 3)
Profit before tax 266 8 164 7 (276 6} 1549
Taxation - - (48 3} (48 3)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 2668 164 7 (324 9} 106 6
Segment assets 22717 1,552 3 8839 4,707 9
Segment habilities (454 2) {406 9) (2,14286) {(3,0037)
Net assets 1,817 5 1,1454 (1,258 7) 1,704 2
Other segment items
- Depreciation 1057 725 117 1899
— Amortisation of intangible assets 87 89 68 24 4
- Capital expenditure - property, plant and
equipment 2927 1007 185 4119
- Capiial expenditure - intangible assets 108 111 113 332
- Movement in provisions (03) 44 162 203

The comparanves have been re-presented to allocate certain shared service overheads on a
consistent basis to the current year
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3 Operating expenses

2011 2010
£m £m
Branch operating expenses 1,551.8 1,501 8
Administrative expenses 432 8 3366
Pension costs 1229 989
2,107 5 1,937 3
4 Net finance costs
2011 2010
£m £m
Finance costs
Interest payable on
Bank loans and overdrafts 20 23
Other loans repayable within 5 years 167 232
Loans repayable in more than 5 years 326 188
Finance lease interest payable 1.3 14
Amortisation of 1ssue costs of bonds 11 11
Preference dividends 01 01
Finance costs in respect of borrowings 538 469
Prermium paid on bond redemption 92 -
Total finance costs In respect of borrowings 630 469
Fair value measurements and other 01 05
Net finance costs ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes (note 25) - 246
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes 47 156
Total finance costs 678 876
Finance income
Interest recevable 27 (37
Finance income in respect of investments 27) 37
Fair value measurements and other (09) (21)
Net finance incorme ansing on defined benefit rebrement schemes (note 25} (2 5) -
Total finance income (6.1) (58)
Net finance costs 61.7 818
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4 Net finance costs {continued)

2011 2010
£m £m
Finance costs In respect of borrowings 538 469
Premium paid on bond redemption 92 -
Finance income 1n respect of investments 27 (37)
Net finance costs 1n respect of borrowings and investments 60 3 432
Fair value measurements and other (0 8) (16)
Net finance (income)/costs ansing on defined benefit retirement schemes 25 246
Net finance costs ansing on other employee benefit schemes 47 156
Net finance costs 617 818
5 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Total
2011 2010
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1s stated after charging/(crediting) the following
Staff costs (note 10) 1,425.8 1,2690
Depreciation — owned assets 2149 1893
Depreciation - assets held under finance leases 06 06
Amortisabon of intangible assets 240 24 4
Profit on sale of property (1.9) (02)
Loss on disposal of tangible and intangible fixed assets 09 23
Inventory — cost of inventory recognised as an expense 48787 4,4604
Restructuring costs 920 170
Operating lease rentals
~ tand and bwildings 1067 971
- plant and machinery 03 05
Sub lease income
— {and and bwldings 47 (4 6}
Fees payable to the group's auditors for audit services
pursuant to legislation
— parent company and group audit 03 03
— substdiary audits 04 04
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and 1ts associates for other services
— taxation services 01 -
— other non audit services 03 03

In addinon to the above, the group’s auditors also acted as auditors to the group’s pension
schemes The aggregate fee for audit services to the pension schemes during the year was

£50,600 (2010 £47,600)

Conungency rents expensed dunng the year were £6 1m (2010 £5 9m) Contngency

rents are determined based on store revenues

49




John Lewis plc annual report and accounts 2011

Notes to the accounts

continued

6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2011 2010 i
Analysis of tax charge £m £m ‘
Corporation tax - current year 62.1 56 5
Corporation tax — pnor years (11.7) (10 3)
Total current tax charge 504 46 2
Deferred tax — current year (10.7) 21
Deferred tax — prior years 5.9 42
45.6 483
2011 2010
Tax credited to equity £m £m
Deferred tax on pension hiability 141 4 (22 3)
Current tax on pension habibty 42 0) (22 6)
99 4 (44 9)

The tax charge for the penod 1s lower (2010 higher) than the standing corporation tax rate
of 28 0% (2010 28 0%) The differences are explained below

2011 2010
£m £m

Profit before tax 1731 1549
Profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 28% (2010 28%) 485 43 4
Effects of
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years (117 (10 3)
Restatement of deferred tax balances for reduction in the
corporation tax rate to 27% (7 2) -
Depreciation on assets not quahfying for tax relief 123 127
Difference between accounting and tax base for land and buildings (2 8) (2 6)
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years 59 42
Sundry disallowables 06 09
Total tax charge 456 48 3

The Finance (No 2) Act 2010 reduced the man rate of corporauon tax from 28% to 27%
from 1 April 2011 In his budget dated 23 March 2011 the Chancellor announced a further
1% reducuon w the mamn rate of corporation tax from 27% to 26% effectve 1 Apnl 2011
Further reducuons to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to
23% by 1 Apnil 2014 The further 1% reducuon announced on 23 March 2011 and the
remaining rate changes had not been substantively enacted at the end of the reporung
pernod and, therefore, are not reflected 1n the consohdated accounts

The effect of the rate change on the current year was to reduce the deferred tax hability by
£3 5m with a £3 7m charge being taken directy to reserves and a £7 2m tax credit to the
income statement The impact of the rate change will be higher 1n the year ending

28 January 2012 due to the accelerated rate change announced 1n the budget dated

23 March 2011, reflecung a 2% reducuon in that year, assuming the 1% per annum
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6 Tax on profit on ordinary activities {(continued)

reductions are substantively enacted annually and a comparable level of deferred tax
Adjustments in future years are expected to be of a sirmtar amount to the year ended

29 January 2011, assumning the 1% per annum reducuons are substantively enacted annually
and a comparable level of deferred tax

7 Profit for the financial year

As permitted by Secuon 408 of the Companies Act 2006, John Lewis plc has not presented
1ts own profit and loss account The result dealt with in the accounts of the company
amounted 10 £3 8m loss (2010 £22 6m loss)

8 Dividends
2011 2010
£m £m
Equity interests
Ordinary shares
(20 pence per share, 2010, 20 pence per share) o1 01

The ordinary shares are ali held by the parent company John Lewis Partnership plc whach 1s
registered mn England and Wales

9 Directors’ emoluments

2011 2010
£000 £000
Directors’ remuneration including Partnership bonus of 18% (2010 15%) 3,440 3,048

The emoluments of the Chairman, who was also the highest paid director for that year,

were £950,000 (2010 £868,000), including Partnership bonus of £142,000 (2010 £111,000)
The Chairman’s aggregate pension enutlement from the age of 60 accrued at the end of the
year was £214,000 per annum (2010 £197,000 per annum) The wransfer value of the increase
mn accrued enutlement dunng the year was £143,000

Excluding pension fund conmbuuons and pension supplements in hieu of future pension
accrual, but including Partnership bonus, the emoluments of the other mdwvdual directors,
excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board dunng any part of the year, were as follows

2011 2010 2011 2010
£400,001 - £450,000 - 1 £600,001 - £650,000 1 1
£450,001 - £500,000 1 - £650,001 - £700,000 1 -
£550,001 - £600,000 - 2 £700,001 - £750,000 1 -

Contracts of employment for all members of the Board provide for a notce penod of one year

All members of the Board qualify for the annual distnbuuon of profit in Partnership bonus,
paid at the same percentage of pay as for any Partner in employment on 31 January They
are also entitled to the use of a company car, or its cash equivalent, and private med:cal
nsurance paid by the group

There have been changes to the pensions arrangements for all members of the Board
dunng the year ended 29 January 2011, as explained below

Four directors belong to the group’s non-contrbutory pension scheme and also to the
semeor pension scheme, which prownides addittonal benefits intended to produce a total
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9 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

pension worth two-thirds of pensionable pay on returement at age 60, after at least 20 or

30 years' service, depending on the level of benefit From Apnl 2010, these four directors
became deferred members of both schemes and therefore accrue no further pension
benefit in those schemes One other director did not participate 1n the group’s
non-contributory pension scheme, but had an unfunded defined contribution arrangement
under which the group accrued contributions The contribunons for the perod to 31 March
2010 were £88,000 and for the year ended 30 January 2010 were £337,000

Following changes to pension legislation in Apnl 2006, four directors opted to have part of
their pension benefit provided on an unfunded basis, and the Partnership gave
undertakings that these directors would have their pension made up to the same level as
that provided by the sentor pension scheme In Aprnl 2010, the unfunded pension accrued
for two directors was settled through a cash settlement One director retamned their
unfunded pension accrued as at that date and provision has been made for this hability
Dunng the year the unfunded pension accrued as at April 2010 in respect of the remamning
two directors was contnbuted by the Partnership to a separate plan managed by a third
party

From Apni 2010, five directors no longer accrue pension benefits within the Partnership’s
pension funds and instead either recewve a pension supplement, being a percentage of
salary, or contributions are made by the Partnership to the separate plan explamned above
During the year ended 29 January 2011, the total pension supplement in leu of future
pension accrual and contnibutions made by the Partnershup for all darectors was £1,457,000,
which includes £400,000 1n respect of the Chairman

The annual pension entitlements from the age of 6{, accrued at the end of the year for
mdimvidual directors, excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board dunng any part
of the year, and the prior year amounts for the same individuals, were as follows

2011 2010 2011 2010
£100,001 - £150,000 1 - £200,001 - £250,000 - 1
£150,001 - £200,000 2 2

The aggregate pension entitlement accrued at the end of the year for all directors,
excluding the Chairman, who served on the Board during any part of the year, and the prior
year amount for the same individuals, was £493,000 per annum {2010 £574,000 per

annum) The net decrease in accrued pension reflects the combined effect of the changes
to pension arrangements described above In additon, all directors are enutled to
temporary pensions payable from age 60 unul their State pension starts The amounts of
these temporary pensions are all less than the State pensions they expect to receve The
aggregate entitlernent to temporary pensions was £21,000 per annum (2010 £12,000 per
annum) For those directors where there was an increase, the transfer value of the aggregate
increase n accrued entitlement, including temporary pensions, during the year was £ml

10 Employees

Dunng the year the average number of employees of the group, all of whom were employed
it the UK, was as follows

Consolidated 2011 2010
John Lews 28,100 27,200
Waitrose 44,800 41,100
Other 1,900 1,700

74,800 70,000
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10 Employees (continued)

Employment and related costs were as follows

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 1,021 7 940 4
Social secunty costs 820 752
Partnership bonus 174.2 1357
Employers’ national insurance on Partnership bonus 203 156
Pension costs 122 9 98 9
Long service leave cost 4.7 32
Total before partner discounts 1,4258 11,2690
Partner discounts 44 6 300

1,4704 11,2990
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key
management compensation

Salaries and short-term benefits 106 99
Pension benefits 43 45
Termination benefits 07 03

Key management mclude directors of group companies, members of the group’s
management boards and officers of the group Key management compensation mncludes
salaries, nauonal insurance costs, pension costs and the cost of other employment benefits
such as company cars, pnivate medical insurance and termination payments

Key management parucipate in the group's long service leave scheme, which 1s open to all
employees and provides up to 6 months’ paid leave after 25 years’ service There 15 no
proporuonal enutement for shorter penods of service It 1s not pracucal to allocate the cost
of accruing entitlement to this benefit to indmduals, and so no allowance has been made
for this benefit in the amounts disclosed above

Dunng the year the average number of employees of the Company, ali of whom were
employed 1n the UK, was as follows

Company 2011 2010
John Lewis 28,100 27,200
Other 1,900 1,700

30,000 28,900
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10 Employees (continued)

Employment and related costs were as follows

2011 2010
Company £m £m
Staff costs
Wages and salares 485 4 4595
Social secunty costs 43.9 408
Partnership bonus 83.1 66 8
Employers national insurance on Partnership bonus 9.7 76
Pension costs 655 538
Long service leave cost 2.5 18
Total before partner discounts 6901 6303
Partner discounts 257 183
7158 6486
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key management
compensation
Salanes and short term benefits 6.8 65
Pension benefits 29 30
Termination benefits 0.3 03
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11 Intangible assets

Computer software

Intemnalty Work 1n

Purchased developed pregress Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 309 106 2 292 166 3
Additions 24 54 254 332
Transfers 26 265 (29 1) -
Disposals - 36} - (36)
At 30 January 2010 359 134 5 255 1959
Additions - - 435 435
Transfers 86 152 (23 8) -
Disposals (02} (0 5} - (07)
At 29 January 2011 44 3 149 2 45 2 2387
Aggregate amorhsation
At 31 January 2009 193 619 - 812
Charge for the year 81 163 - 24 4
Disposals - 22) - (2 2)
At 30 January 2010 274 76 0 - 103 4
Charge for the year 46 154 - 240
Disposals {01) - - {01
At 29 January 2011 319 95.4 - 127 3
Net book value at 30 January 2010 85 58 5 255 92 5
Net book value at 29 January 2011 124 538 452 111.4
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11 Intangible assets (continued}

For the year to 29 January 2011 computer systems totalling £23 8m (2010 £29 1m) were

brought mto use Thas covered a range of selling, support, admmistrauon and IT

infrastructure applications, with asset lives ranging from three to seven years

Amorusation of intangible assets 1s charged within operating expenses

Computer software
Interally Work in

Purchased developed Progress Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 191 103 7 292 1520
Additions 19 54 239 312
Transfers 03 28 7 {29 0) -
Disposals - 36 - (36)
At 30 January 2010 213 134 2 241 1796
Addrtions - - 378 378
Transfers 34 152 (18 6) -
Disposals (01) {0 5) - (086)
At 29 January 2011 24.6 148 9 43 3 2168
Aggregate amortisation
At 31 January 2009 125 601 - 726
Charge for the year 39 179 - 218
Disposals - 22) - (2 2)
At 30 January 2010 16 4 758 - 922
Charge for the year 31 194 - 225
Disposals (01 - - o1
At 29 January 2011 194 95.2 - 1146
Net book value at 30 January 2010 49 58 4 241 87 4
Net book value at 29 January 2011 52 53.7 43 3 102 2

56




John Lewis plc annual report and accounts 2011

12 Property, plant and equipment

Assets in

Land and  Fidures and course of

bunldmgs fithngs  construction Total
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 2,904 5 1,358 4 142 7 4,405 6
Additions - 75 404 4 4119
Transfers 2977 1599 (457 6) -
Disposals (60) (36 7) - 427
At 30 January 2010 3,196 2 1,4891 895 4,774 8
Additions - 06 448 6 449 2
Transfers 2037 103 5 (307 2) -
Disposals 8N (18 2) - (27 1)
At 29 January 2011 3,3910 1,575 0 2309 5,196.9
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 January 2009 446 3 782 5 - 1,228 8
Charges for the year 713 118 6 - 1899
Disposals - (34 9) - (34 9)
At 30 January 2010 5176 866 2 - 1,3838
Charges for the year 723 143 2 - 2155
Disposals (77} (17 3) - (250)
At 29 January 2011 5822 992 1 - 1,574 3
Net book values at 30 January 2010 2,678 6 622 9 895 3,391 0
Net book values at 29 January 2011 2,8088 582 9 2309 3,622 6

Included above are land and buildings assets held under finance leases with a net book value

of £19 6m (2010 £20 2m)
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued}

Assets in

tand and  Fixtures and course of

buildings fittngs  construction Total
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 January 2009 5550 663 8 540 1,272 8
Additions - 69 1325 1394
Transfers 641 107 O (171 1) -
Disposals (303 (23 0) - (53 3)
At 30 January 2010 588 8 754 7 154 1,358 9
Additions - 01 105 4 1065
Transfers 539 42 1 (96 0) -
Disposals - (4 4) - (4 4)
At 29 January 2011 6427 792.5 24.8 1,460 0
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 January 2009 829 3908 - 4737
Charges for the year 196 576 - 772
Disposals (39) 21 2) - (25 1)
At 30 January 2010 98 6 427 2 - 525 8
Charges for the year 154 715 - 869
Disposals - 37N - (37}
At 29 January 2011 1140 495 0 - 609.0
Net book values at 30 January 2010 4902 327 5 154 8331
Net book values at 29 January 2011 5287 297 5 248 851.0

Included above are land and buildings assets held under finance leases with a net book value

of £132m (2010 £13 5m)
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13 Investments

Shares in Loans to
group group
companies companies Total
Company £m £m £m
At 30 January 2010 841 9015 8856
Movements (07) 690 693
At 29 January 2011 834 970.5 1,053 9
A list of subsidiary undertakings ts provided 1n note 34
14 Inventones
2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Raw matenals 51 49
Work( in progress 08 08
Finished goods and goads for resale 416 1 3933
422.0 3990
Company
Raw matenals 2.7 26
Finished goods and goods for resale 242 8 2309
245.5 2335

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the group 1n the penod was

£4,878 Tm (2010 £4,460 4m) Prowvistons aganst inventories of £1 Om were charged

(2010 £0 2m credited) in operating expenses
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15 Trade and other receivables

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Current
Trade receivables 78 6 656
Other receivables 541 44 5
Prepayments 78 0 573
2107 167 4
Non-current
Prepayments 41 4 425
Company
Current
Trade recewvables 14 2 40
Other recevables 279 257
Prepayments 456 363
877 660
Non-current
Prepayments 41.4 42 4

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on credit terms of less than
90 days Concentrations of credit nsk are considered to be very hmmited The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables approximates to far value and 15 denominated
in sterling

As of 29 January 2011, group trade recewables of £1 O0m (2010 £0 8m) were impaired and
fully provided for Movements m the provision for impairment of recewables were as follows

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
At start of penod (0 8) (10
Charged to income statement (0 4) on
Released 02 03
At end of penod (1 0) (0 8)

As at 29 January 2011, company trade receivables of £0 5m (2010 £0 3m) were impaired
and fully provided for Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as
follows

2011 2010
Company £m Em
At start of penod (0 3) (03)
Charged to income statement 02) -
Released - -
At end of penod (05) {03)

The creaton and release of the provision for impaired recevables have been included 1n
operanng expenses in the income statement
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

As of 29 January 2011, group trade and other recewvables of £18 1m (2010 £15 1m) were
past due but not imparred The ageing analysis of the past due amounts 15 as follows

2011 2010

Consolidated £m £m

Up to 3 months past due 166 90

3 to 12 months past due 11 55

‘ Over 12 months past due 04 06
181 151

As of 29 January 2011, company trade and other recevables of £13 8m (2010 £8 1m) were
past due but not impatred The ageing analysis of past due amounts 1s as follows

2011 2010
Company £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 131 34
3 to 12 months past due 04 42
Over 12 months past due 03 05
138 81

16 Cash and cash equivalents
2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 84 2 841
Short-term bank deposits 428.5 4759
5127 560 0

1 Company

Cash at bank and n hand 280 329
Short-term bank deposits 396 6 443 9
424 6 476 8

For the year ended 29 January 2011, the effective interest rate on short-term investments
was 0 7% (2010 08%) and these deposits had an average marrity of 3 days (2010 2 days)
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16 Cash and cash equivalents (continued}

In the group and company cash flow statements, net cash and cash equvalents are shown

after deducting bank overdrafts, as follows

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents, as above 5127 5600
Less bank overdrafts (65 3) {115 6}
Net cash and cash equivalents 447 4 444 4
Company
Cash and cash equivalents, as above 424 6 476 8
Less bank overdrafts (64 1) {1150)
Net cash and cash equivalents 3605 3618

17 Analysis of financial assets

The currency and interest rate exposures of the group’s and company’s financial assets are as
set out below Shortterm debtors and investrnents 1n subsidiary compames are excluded from
thus analysis, on the basis that they are all non interest bearing and denommated in sterhng

Floating  Non interest

Effective rate beanng Total

Consohdated interest rate £m £m £m
Sterling 07% 5001 537 5538
Euro 00% - - -
Other 01% 03 - 03
At 29 January 2011 500.4 537 554 1
Sterling 0 8% 542 6 539 596 5
Euro 00% 52 - 52
Other 00% 09 - 09
At 30 January 2010 548 7 539 602 6

Effective Floating  Non interest

interest rate rate beanng Total

Company % £m £m £m
Sterling 07% 421 2 44 6 4658
Euro 0 0% - - -
Other 01% 03 - 03
At 29 Janvary 2011 421.5 44 6 466 1
Sterling 08% 467 7 454 5131
Euro 00% 52 - 52
Other 0 0% 09 - 09
At 30 January 2010 473 8 45 4 5192

Floaung rate assets are bank balances and short-term deposits at interest rates linked to
LIBOR Non-interest beanng balances include prepaid rent and cash floats, primarily held

1n the stores
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18 Borrowings and overdrafts

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Current
Bank overdraft 653 1156
Loans, 2011 1000 -
165.3 1156
Non-current
Leans, 2011 - 1000
6%% Bonds, 2012 1420 3000
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 62 127
10%% Bonds, 2014 100.0 1000
8%% Bonds, 2019 2750 2750
64% Bonds, 2025 3000 -
Unamortised bond transaction costs (6 3) (2 8)
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock 15 15
7% Cumulative Preference Stock 08 08
819.2 787 2
Company
Current
Bank overdraft 641 1150
Loans, 2011 100.0 -
1641 1150
Non-current
Loans, 2011 - 1000
6%% Bonds, 2012 142 0 3000
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on above 62 127
10¥4% Bonds, 2014 1000 1000
8%% Bonds, 2019 2750 2750
6%% Bonds, 2025 300.0 -
Unamortised bond transaction costs (63) (2 8)
5% First Cumulative Preference Stock 15 15
7% Cumulative Preference Stock 08 08
819.2 787 2

All borrowings are unsecured, denominated 1n sterling, and are repayable on the dates
shown, at par

If the preference dividends are in arrears or in the event of winding up, the 5% First

Cumulaave Preference Stock and the 7% Cumulauve Preference Stock have one vote per

share Otherwise, the holders of preference stock have one vote for every ten shares,

whereas the holders of ordinary shares have one vote for every ordinary share held The
amounts recevable in a winding up would be limited to the amounts paid up, the 5% First
Cumulaave Preference Stock taking prionty over the 7% Cumulauve Preference Stock
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19 Trade and other payables

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Current
Trade payables 4245 358 2
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 571 431
Other payables 95 2 789
Other taxation and social secunty 141 4 117 2
Accruals 167 5 165 2
Deferred income 257 283
Partnership bonus 1761 137 6
1,087 5 928 5
Non-current
Accruals 1.1 13
Deferred income 645 48 5
656 498
Company
Current
Trade payables 162 2 137 4
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 57.1 431
Amounts owed to group companies 358.2 3532
Other payables 691 571
Other taxation and social security 1189 992
Accruals 1154 1230
Deferred iIncome 25.3 27 4
Partnership benus 17563 1370
1,081 5 977 4
Non-current
Accruals 11 13
Deferred income 589 46 2
600 47 5

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value
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20 Finance lease habilities

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year 20 21
Later than one year but not more than five 74 83
More than five years 48 3 509
57.7 613
Future finance charge on finance leases (28 9) (32 1)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 288 292
Of which
Current 08 07
Non-current 280 285
Company
The mimmum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
Not later than one year 05 05
Later than one year but not more than five 2.0 20
More than five years 254 259
279 284
Future finance charge on finance leases (13 0) (13 4)
Present value of finance lease habihties 149 150
Of which
Current 0.2 02
Non-current 14,7 148

The group’s finance lease liabilities relate to buildings that have been classified as finance

leases 1n accordance with IAS 17 Leases
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21 Provisions

Long Service
service guarantee

leave costs Insurance Other Total

Consolidated £m £m Em £m £m
At 30 January 2010 801 48 2 175 390 1848
Charged to income statement 94 205 79 349 706
Released to income statement - - - 59 (59}
Utihsed 41 (16 1) {7 0) (26 5) {51 6)
At 29 January 2011 854 526 184 41.5 197 9

Of whtch
Current 277 174 43 356 850
Non-current 577 352 141 59 1129
Long Service
service guarantee

leave costs Other Total

Company £m £m £m £m
At 30 January 2010 801 48 2 331 161 4
Charged to income statement 94 205 334 633
Released to income statement - - (53) (53)
Utilised 41 {16 1) (23 7) {43 9)
At 29 January 2011 85.4 52.6 375 1755

Of which

Current 277 17 4 322 77 3
Non-current 577 351 54 98 2

The Partnership has a long service leave scheme, open to all employees, that provides up
to six months’ paid leave after 25 years’ service There 1s no proportional enutdement for
shorter penods of service The provision for the habilities under the scheme 1s assessed
on an actuanal basis, reflecung employees’ expected service profiles, and using economic
assumpuions consistent with those used for the group’s reurement benefit obligations
{note 25) with the exception of the discount rate, where a rate appropriate to shorter
duration of the long leave liabihiy is used, so as to accrue the cost over employees’ service
periods

Prowisions for service guarantee costs reflect the group's expected hability for future
repair costs based on expected failure rates and unit repair costs for the classes of goods
sold

Prowisions for insurance claims are 1n respect of the group’s employer’s, public and
vehicle third party hiability insurances and extended warranty products Liabilizes have
been assessed on an actuarial basts

Other provisions include reorgamisauon costs, accrued holiday pay, customer refunds and
property related costs

The exact uming of uthsation of these provisions will vary according to the indmdual
crreumstances However, the group’s best esumate of utilisauon 1s provnided above, and
in note 26
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22 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s calculated 1n full on temporary dafferences under the liability method

using a tax rate of 27% (2010 28%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 15 shown below

2011 2010
Consolidated £m £m
Opening asset (41 9) {21 7)
{Credited)/charged to income statement (4 8) 21
Charged/(credited) to equity 141.4 (22 3)
Closing liability/{asset) 947 (419

2011 2010
Company £m £m
Opening asset (199 1) (165 8)
(CreditedYcharged to income statement (20 9) (110
Credited to equity 142 2 (223)
Closing asset (77 8) (199 1)

The movements in deferred tax assets and habihiues during the penod (prior to the

offsetung of balances within the same jurisdiction, as permitted by IAS 12) are shown

below

Deferred tax assets and habiliues are only offset where there 15 a legally enforceable night
of offset and there 15 an imtenuon to setde the balances net

Capital
gamns tax on Accelerated Revaluation

land and tax of land and  Rollover

bwidings depreciation buildings gains Other Total
Deferred tax liabilities -
consohdated £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 31 January 2009 02 169 3 63 241 12 2011
{Credited)/charged to income

statement (02) 114 04 on 10 119

At 30 January 2010 - 1807 67 234 22 2130
Credited to income statement - (17) (18} (16 {0 4} (5 5}
At 29 January 2011 - 1790 49 218 18 2075
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22 Deferred tax (continued)

Capital
gains tax on Pensions

land and and Capital

buldings provisions losses Total
Deferred tax assets — consolidated £m £m Em £m
At 31 Janvary 2009 - (222 8) - (222 8)
Credited to income statement 20) 77 (01) {9 8}
Credited to equity - (223) - (22 3)
At 30 January 2010 z0) (252 8) (01) (254 9)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (03) 09 01 c7
Charged to equity - 141 4 - 1414
At 29 January 2011 (2 3) (110 5) - (112 8)

Accelerated Revaluation
tax of land and  Rollover
depreciation buitdings gains Other Total
Deferred tax habilities — company £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 January 2009 732 05 89 12 838
Charged/(credited) to income statement 42 (0 4) {BY] 08 45
At 30 January 2010 77 4 01 88 20 883
Credited to income statement (0 9} - {0 6) (0 5) 2 0}
At 29 January 2011 765 01 82 15 863
Capital
gans taxon  Pensions
land and and
bundings  provisions Total

Deferred tax assets - company £m £m £m
At 31 January 2009 (126) (2370) (2496)
Charged/(credited) to income statement 05 {16 0} (15 5)
Credited to equity - {22 3) (22 3)
At 30 January 2010 (121 (2753) (287 4)
Credited to income statement on (18 8) (189)
Charged to equity - 142 2 142 2
At 29 January 2011 {122) (1519) (164.1)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax iosses carned forward to the extent that the
realisanon of the related tax benefit through future profits 1s probable There were no
unrecogmsed deferred tax assets in respect of losses, for the group or the company, for
the year ended 29 January 2011 (2010 nil)
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22 Deferred tax (continued)

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the
current tax benefit obtained in the financial year ended 30 January 2010 following the
contribution of the hmited partnership interest in JL.P Scotnsh Limited Partnership to the
pension scheme (see note 25)

All of the deferred tax assets for the group were available for offset against deferred tax
habiliues and hence the net deferred tax hiabihity at 29 January 2011 was £94 7m (2010
asset of £41 9m) The net deferred tax hability for the group 1s due after more than one
year

All of the deferred tax habihties for the company were available for offset against deferred
tax assets and hence the net deferred tax asset at 29 January 2011 was £77 8m (2010 asset
of £199 Im) The net deferred tax asset for the company 15 recoverable after more than
one year

23 Management of financial nsks

The principal financial nisks to which the group 1s exposed are liquidity risk, interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, capital risk and energy nsk These risks are
managed as follows

Liguidaty risk

Liquidity requirements are managed in line with short and long-term cash flow forecasts
and reviewed against the group’s debt portfolio and matunty profile At the year end the
group had committed revolving borrowings facihities of £310m (2010 £490m), £30m of
which was available to August 2012, £40m to October 2012 and £270m to September 2013
In addition to these facihues, the group has bonds totalling £817m, £142m of which
mature in 2012, £100m 1n 2014, £275m 1n 2019 and £300m 1n 2025, together with a term
loan of £100m maturing in March 2011 The bonds are not subject to repricing, and their
interest rates and matunty profiles are set out in note 26

In July 2010 the group 1ssued a £300m bond repayable in 2025 and bought back £158m of
the bond due 1in 2012, reducing the average cost of borrowing, extending the borrowing
maturnity and reducing the refinancing risk

The group’s bank borrowing faciliues each contain one financaal covenant, based on
erther the level of tangible net worth or fixed charge cover The minimum covenants that
apply are that tangible net worth shall be at least equal to finanaal indebtedness and that
consolidated EBITDAR shall not be less than 2 5 nmes rent adjusted total net interest
costs Throughout the year the group mamtained comfortable headroom against these
covenants and 15 expected to do so into the foreseeable future

In March 2011, the term loan of £100m was extended to December 2012 and following this
agreement, the financial covenants on the group’s bank borrowing facihues are oniy based
on fixed charge cover

The group’s total commuitted sources of funds at the date of sigming these accounts are
£1,227m
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23 Management of financial nsks (continued)

The following analysis shows the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under
financial habilines and dernivauve assets and habilines at the balance sheet date

Due within  Due between  Due 2 years
iyear 1and 2 years and beyond
Consclhidated £m £m £m
Non-dernivative financial habilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease habihties (100 Q) (142 Q) (675 0)
Interest payments on borrowings (611) (51 9} (392 2)
Finance lease habilities (19) (19) {53 3)
Trade and other payables (920 3) (11) -
Denvative financial liabilibes
Denvative contracts — receipts 1123 - -
Dervative contracts — payments (106 O) - -
At 29 January 2011 (1,077 Q) (1968} (1,1205)
Non-denvative financial habilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease habilities - (100 ) (675 0)
Interest payments on borrowings (53 5) (52 8) (205 3)
Finance lease habilities {2 1} (21) {57 1)
Trade and other payables (783 O} (13) -
Denvative financial iabihties
Derivative contracts - receipts 1137 96 -
Dervative contracts — payments (107 6) {19 -
At 30 January 2010 (832 5} (148 5) (937 4}
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Due within  Due between  Due 2 years
lyear 1and2years and beyond

Company £m £m £m
Non-denvative financial habihties
Borrowings, excluding finance lease habilities (100 0) (142 0) (675 0)
Interest payments on borrowings {61 1) (51 9) (392 2)
Finance lease habilities (05 (0 5) (26 9)
Trade and other payables (944 0) (11) -
Denvative financial habilities
Denivative contracts — receipts 1123 - -
Dernvative contracts — payments (106 0) - -
At 29 January 2011 (1,099.3) (195.5) (1,094.1}

MNon-denvative financial habilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease liabilities - (100 O) (675 0)
Interest payments on borrowings (53 5) {52 8) (205 3)

Finance lease habilities (0 5) {0 5) (27 4)

Trade and other payables (850 8) (13) -
Denvative financial habihties

Dervative contracts — receipts 1137 96 -

Dernvative contracts — payments (107 6) (19 -
At 30 January 2010 (898 7) (146 9) (907 7}

Interest on borrowings 1s calculated based on the borrowing position at the finanaal year
end without taking account of future 1ssues Future floating rate interest habihtes are
estimated using the forward interest rate curve as at the relevant year end date

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency
contracis 1s translated at spot rates prevailing at the year end

Interest rate risk

In order to manage the nisk of interest rate fluctuattons the group targets a ratio of fixed
and floating rate debt in line with the Board approved treasury policy An analysis of the
group’s financial habilities 15 detailed 1n note 26 Exposures to interest rate fluctuations
are managed using interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps have been used to convert
£142 0m (2010 £150m}) of fixed rate bond debt to floaung rate These swaps have a
matunty and payment profile which matches the underlying 6 375% 2012 bond and have
been accounted for as fair value hedges under IAS 39 The movementin the fair value of
the swaps and of the underlying hedged 1tem attributable to the hedged risk 1s £5 7m
Foreign currency risk

The group uses denvatives t0 manage exposures to movements in exchange rates arising
from transactions with foreign supphers Foreign currency exposures are hedged primanly
using forward foreign exchange contracts covering up to 100% of forecast exposures on a
rolling basis Forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge forecast currency
requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with fair value movements recognised 1in
equity Denvatves that were designated as cash flow hedges dunng the year were fully
effecuve At the balance sheet date, forward currency contracts of £103 1m (2010

£105 7m) have been entered nto to hedge purchases in foreign currencies which will
mature over the next 12 months At the year end £9 Om (2010 £8 Om) of a total of £9 1m
(2010 £8 2m) of habihties denominated in foreign currency were covered i this way
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23 Management of financial nsks (continued}

Credit risk

The group has no significant exposure to customer credit risk Cash deposits and other
financial mstruments give nse to credit nsk on the amounts due from counterparues
These nisks are managed by restricting such transactions to counterparues with a credtt
rating not less than a Standard & Poor’s equivalent ‘A’ ratng

The group and company consider their maximum exposure to credit nsk 15 as follows

2011 2010

Consolidated £m £m
Trade and other recevables 132 6 1101
Cash and cash equivalents 5127 5600
645 3 6701

2011 2010

Company £m Em
Trade and other receivables 42.1 297
Cash and cash equivalents 424 6 476 8
466 7 506 5

Capital risk

The group’s objective 1s to maintain a capital structure which 1s consistent with an
investment grade credit raung Although the group does not have a credit raung, 1t
monitors capual risk using a number of capital ranos commonly used by raung agencies
to assess risk These ratios help the Board to establish levels of debt that the group should
not exceed, other than for relanvely short periods of ume

Energy nisk

The group operates risk management processes for the group’s energy costs associated
with 1ts acuviues The group’s energy policy 1s set out and reviewed by an energy
committee which meets regularly to review pricing exposure to electriaty and gas
consumpuon and determines strategy for forward purchasing and hedging of energy
costs

Sensitivity analysis
The following analysis illustrates the sensitivity of the group’s financial Instruments to
changes 1n market varables, namely UK interest rates and the US dollar, euro and Hong
Kong dollar to sterling exchange rates

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market vanables on the carrying value
of pension and other postreurement obligauons and provisions

The analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the rauo of
fixed to floaung rate borrowings and the proporton of financial instruments 1n foreign
currencies are constant throughout the year, based on average balances and rates during
the year As a consequence, this sensiuvity analysis 15 not representasve of the financial
years in total

The following assumptions have been made 1n calculaung the sensiuvity analysis
» the sensibvity of interest costs to movements mn mnterest rates 1s calculated on average
floaung rate debt and investment balances prevailling dunng the financial year,
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* changesn the carrymg value of dervauves designated as fair value hedges ansing
from movements m interest rates are assumed to have no effect on net assets,

* changes in the carrying value of derivauve financial instruments not in hedging
relanonships are assumed only to affect the income statement, and

* all dervanve instruments designated as hedges are assumed to be fully effecuve

2011 2010

Income Income
statement Equity statement Equity
+/- £m +/- £m +/- £m +/-£m
UK interest rates +/- 5% 19 - 38 -
US dollar exchange rate +/- 15% 12 14 36 42
Euro exchange rate +/~ 10% 05 54 04 54
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate +/- 15% 02 02 03 06

24 Financial instruments

All financial assets and habilities are held at amorused cost with the excepton of financal
derivatives which are held at fair value

Details of the group’s financial instruments, used to manage the finanaal nsks as
idenufied in note 23, are shown below

The fair values of derivauve financial instruments are as follows

2011 2011 2010 2010

Assets Liabilites Assets Liabitities

Consolidated and Company £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swap — fair value hedge 70 - 127 -
Currency derivatives — cash flow hedge 16 10 09 24
86 10 136 24

The fair value of the financial mstruments held by the group are classified as level 2 under
the IFRS 7 fair value hierarchy as all significant inputs to the valuation model used are
based on observable market data

The fair values of the group’s bonds and preference stock, which have been determined
by reference to market price quotations, are shown below For cash and other financial
habihines, book values approximate to fair value

2011 2010
Consolidated and Company £m £m
Bonds 895.7 7713
Preference stock 1.8 18
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25 Retirement benefit obligations

The principal pension scheme operated by the Partnership 1s a defined benefit scheme,
providing benefits based on final pensionable pay The assets of this scheme are held

In 2 separate, trusiee adminstered fund

The fund was last valued by an independent professionally quahfied actuary as at

31 March 2010 using the projected umt method, which resulted in a funding surplus of
£83m The market value of the assets of the fund as at 31 March 2010 was £2,341m The
actuanal valuauon of these assets showed that they were sufficent to cover 104% of the
benefits which had accrued to members

The annual contributon rate applicable for the year 1o 31 March 201115 12 8% of gross
taxable pay of members, together with an additional £8 1m per year in respect of the past-
service deficit ansing from the actuanal valuation at 31 March 2007 The actuanes have
recommended a normal future annual contribution rate of 12 2% of gross taxable pay of
members from 1 April 2011 onwards The next tnenmal actuanal valuanon of the fund
will take place as at 31 March 2013

As explained i note 9, there 1s also a senior pension scheme which provides addiuonal
benefits to certain members of senior management The actuanes have recommended an
annual contribution rate of £1 6m In addition, deficit reduction contrnibutions totalling
£6m were made 1n January and February 2011 to discharge the deficitin full

The contribunons expected to be paid to the pension schemes during the year to

28 January 2012 amount to £104m

Pension commitments have been calculated based on the most recent actuanal valuations,
as at 31 March 2010, which have been updated by the actuaries to assess the assets and
liabiliues of the schemes as at 29 January 2011

Scheme assets are stated at market values at 29 January 2011 The following financial
assumptions have been used

2011 2010
Future retail price inflation 31.35% 325%
Future consumer price inflation 2.65% n/a
Discount rate 5.65% 5 70%
Expected return on assets 7.70% 7 80%
Increases in earmings 1.85% 375%
Increases 1n pensions ~ 1N payment 3.15% 325%
Increases in pensions — deferred 2.65% 3 25%

The expected return on assets 1s a weighted average of the indivmidual asset categones

and their expected rates of return, which are determined by consideranon of historical
experience and current market factors Increases in carnings are projected at 0 5% above
retail price inflanon, with increases 1n pensions 1in payment being 0 2% below retail pnice
inflatton, reflecting the impact of a cap on the level of pension increases, and increase 1n
deferred pensions being in line with consumer pnice inflanon

The financial assumption which has the most sigmficant effect on the valuanon of scheme
habihites and the current service cost 1s the real discount rate, 1 e the discount rate less
the rate of future retail price inflanon A movement in the real discount rate of 0 10%
would have the effect of increasing or decreasing the IAS 19 defined benefit obliganon by
circa £50m, and would increase or decrease the current service cost by circa £2 9m

The postrenrement mortality assumptons used i valuing the pensions habihiies were based
on the “5I Light” senes standard tables for all reurements, together with medium cohort
improvement factors, and reflecung antcipated future improvements m mortality rates
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The average Lfe expectancies assumed were as follows

2011 2010
Men Women Men Women
Average life expectancy (in years) for a 60-year-oid 26.1 282 260 284
Average Iife expectancy (in years) at age 60,
for a 40-year-old 273 297 27 3 295
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m
Defined benefit obligation for
funded arrangements (2,8690) (2,824 (2,3340) (2,3970) (2,237 0}
Defined benefit obligation for
unfunded arrangements (11.0) (29 0) {18 0) (16 0) (14 0)
Total defined benefit obligahon (2,880.0) (285300 1{2,3520) 241300 (2,251 ()
Total value of assets 2,466 0 1,948 4 16220 1,859 0 1,8100
Defined benefit lability at end of year (414 Q) (904 6) (730 0) {554 0) (441 0)
Year ended Year ended
29 January 30 lanuary
2011 2010
Amounts recognised in the mncome statement £m £m
Current service cost 120 ¢ 96 7
Curtaiiment gain (24) -
Contnibution expense* 3.5 09
Administrative costs 18 13
Operating cost 1229 989
Interest cost on habilities 158 6 1596
Expected return on assets (162 1) {1350)
Finance (income)/charge (25 246
Total pension charge 120 4 1235

* Includes Partnership contribuuons to the defined contribuuon scheme as well as
contnbutions to a separate plan managed by a third party and pension supplements to

certain Partners in heu of future pension accrual

Year ended Year ended

29 January 30 lJanuary

2011 2010

Amounts recognised in equity £m £m
Actuanal {gains)/losses on assets (179.2) (164 7)
Actuanal (gains)/iosses on deftned benefit obhgation (159.5) 3251
Total (gains)/losses recognised In equity (338.7) 160 4
Cumutative loss recognised in equity 230.8 569 5
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25 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

2011 2010

Reconcihation of defined benefit Labihity Em £m
Defined benefit hability at beginming of year (904 6) (7300
Pension expense (115.1) (121 3)
Contributions 267.0 1071
Total gains/(losses) recognised 1n equity 338.7 (160 4)
Defined benefit habiity at end of year (414 0) (904 6)
2011 2010

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation £m £m
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 2,853 0 23520
Current service cost 1200 96 7
Curtailment gain (2.4) -
Interest on pension habilhes 159 6 1596
Actuarial (gans)/losses {159.5) 3251
Benefits paid (90 7) (80 4)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year 2,8800 2,8530
2011 2010

Reconcihation of value of assets £m £m
Value of assets at the beginning of year 1,948 4 1,622 0
Expected return on assets 162.1 1350
Actuanal gains 179.2 1647
Benefits paid (90.7) (80 4}
Contributions 267.0 107 1
Value of assets at the end of year 2,466 0 1,948 4
2011 2011 2010 2010

Analysis of assets % Em % £m
Equities 74 1,818.1 71 1,392 3
Bonds 13 324.9 14 2639
Properties 8 193.8 8 1495
Other 5 129.2 7 1427
2,466.0 1,948 4

2011 2010

Actual return on assets £m £m
Expected return on assets 162 1 1350
Actuanal gains 179 2 164 7
Actual return on assets 3413 2997
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25 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
History of expenience of gains and losses £m £m £m £m £m
(Gains)losses on assets (179 2) (164 7) 5145 1103 43 7)
% of assets at the end of the year 7% 8% 32% 6% 2%
Experience (gains)/tosses on defined
benefit cbligation {106 5) (28 Q) (17 4) 60 6 15
% of defined benefit obligation at the
end of the penod 4% 1% 1% 3% 0%

Conmbutions will be as follows unal the next actuanal valuation due as at 31 March 2013

The John Lewis Partmership Trust for Pensions - 12 8% of scheme members’ gross taxable pay
(excluding Partnership bonus), together with £8 1m per year in respect of the pastservice deficit,
unnl 31 March 2011 From 1 Apnl 2011 the contmbuton rate will be 12 2% of scheme members’
gross axable pay (excluding Parmership bonus) and no defiat reduction conmbunons are
required as the scheme 15 m surplus on a funding basis

For the John Lewis Partmership Semor Pension Scheme - £1 6m, or such other amount as
cernified by the scheme actuary based upon an analysis of the membership data at the start of the
scheme year

On 30 January 2010 the group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustees
to address an element of the scheme deficit that existed at that ume

The group estabhished two parmerships, JLP Scottush Limited Partnership and JLP Scotush
Parmership, which are both consohdated within these group financial statements

Together with another group company, JLP Scotish Limited Parmershap pronided sufficient
capual to JL.P Scotush Partnership to enable 1t to procure property assets with a market value of
£150 9m from other group companies The group retams control over these properues,
including the flexabihty to substtute alternative propertnes The Properues held in JLP Scotnsh
Partmership have been leased back to John Lewss plc and Waitrose Limited

As a partner in JLP Scotush Limted Parmership, the pension scheme 15 enutled to an annual
share of the profits of the JL.P Scotosh Limited Parmership each year over 21 years At the end of
this peniod, the partnership capital allocated to the penston scheme will be reassessed,
depending on the funding positon of the pension scheme at that tme, with a potenual value 1n
the range £0 5m to £99 5m At that point, the group may be required to transfer this amount in
cash 1o the scheme

Under IAS 19, the investment held by the pension scheme in JLP Scotush Limited Partnerstup, a
consolidated enuty, does not represent a plan asset for the purpose of the group’s consohdated
accounts Accordingly, the pension deficit posinon presented n these consolidated accounts does
not reflect the £98m (2010 £95m) mvestment in JLP Scottish Limited Parmership held by the
pension scheme The dismbunon of JLP Scotush Larmited Partnership profits to the pension
scheme 15 reflected as pension contnibunons in these consoldated accounts on a cash basis

The nvestment does represent a plan asset for the purpose of the company accounts The
rearement benefit obhiganon for the company as at 29 January 2011 was £316 Om (2010
£809 6m)
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Notes to the accounts

continued

26 Analysis of financial habilities

The currency and interest rate exposure of the group'’s and company’s financial hathues,
after taking account of £142m (2010 £150m) of swaps from fixed rate to floating rate, 15

as set out below Short term payables are excluded from this analysis

Non
Consolidated Fixed Floating interest
rate rate bearing Total
Interest rate and currency analysis £m £m £m £m
All sterling
At 29 January 2011 7060 307.3 197.9 1,211 2
At 30 January 2010 566 4 656 184 8 1,116 8
Consolidated 2011 2011 2010 2010
Effectve Effective
Matunty of financial habilities interest rate £m  interest rate £m
Repayable in one year
Bank overdrafts and other borrowing 17% 653 17% 1156
Provisions 850 68 5
Property finance leases 7 6% 08 7 6% 07
Loans 0.9% 1000 - -
251.1 184 8
Repayable between one and two years
Provisions 286 379
Property ftnance leases 7 6% 08 76% 08
Loans - 12% 1000
Bonds 6 4% 142 0 - -
Unamorttsed bond transaction costs (0 2) -
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 62 -
177.4 1387
Repayable between two and five years
Provisions 357 421
Property finance leases 7 6% 2.5 76% 24
Bonds 10 5% 100.0 7 4% 4000
Unamortised bond transaction costs - (0 6)
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds - 127
138.2 456 6
Repayable in more than five years
Provisions 48.6 363
Property finance leases 76% 24.7 7 6% 253
Bonds 72% 575.0 8 4% 2750
Unamortised bond transaction costs (6.1) (2 2}
Preference stock 56% 2.3 56% 23
644.5 3367
1211.2 1,116 8
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26 Analysis of financial habiities (continued)

Non
Company Fixed Floating interest
rate rate beanng Total
Interest rate and currency analysis £m £m £m £m
All sterling
At 29 January 2011 6921 3061 175.5 1,1737
At 30 January 2010 552 2 3650 161 4 1,078 6
Company 2011 2011 2010 2010
Effective Effective
Matunty of financial iabilities interest rate £m  interest rate £m
Repayable within one year
Bank overdrafts and other borrowing 1.7% 64.1 17% 1150
Provisions 77 3 598
Property finance leases 76% 02 7 6% 02
Loans 0.9% 100.0 - -
241.6 1750
Repayable between one and two years
Provisions 238 333
Property finance leases 7.6% 02 7 6% 02
Loans - - 12% 1000
Bonds 6.4% 142.0 - -
Unamortised bond transaction costs (0.2) -
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 6.2 -
172.0 1335
Repayable between two and five years
Provisions 27.7 343
Property finance leases 7 6% 06 7 6% 05
Bonds 10 5% 1000 7 4% 4000
Unamortised bond transaction costs - (0 6)
Fair value adjustment for hedged nsk on bonds 127
128.3 446 9
Repayable in more than five years
Provisions 46.7 340
Property finance leases 7.6% 139 7 6% 141
Bonds 7 2% 575.0 84% 2750
Unamortised bond transaction costs (6.1) (2 2)
Preference stock 56% 2.3 56% 23
631.8 3232
1,173 7 1,078 6
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Notes to the accounts

continued

27 Share capital

2011 2010
£m £m
Authonsed, 1ssued and fully paid
Equity
Ordinary shares
6,750,000 of £1 each 67 67
6.7 67
28 Reconcihiation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations
Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Consolhidated £m £m
Profit before tax 1731 154 9
Amortisation of intangible assets 24.0 24 4
Depreciation 2155 1899
Net finance costs 617 818
Partnership bonus provision 184 5 1513
{Profit}/loss on disposal of tangible and intangtble assets (10} 21
Increase in inventories (23 0) (46 7}
{Increase)/decrease n recevables (42 5) (24 2)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 146.1 1295
(Decrease)/increase 1n retirement benefit obligations 06 (10 4)
Increase in provisions 84 47
Cash generated from operations 757 4 657 3
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28 Reconciiation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations (continued)

Year to Year to
29 January 30 January
2011 2010
Company £m £m
(Loss)/profit before tax (121) (327)
Amortisation of intangible assets 225 218
Depreciation 869 77 2
Net finance costs 608 808
Partnership bonus provision 927 74 4
Loss on disposal of tangible and intangible assets 05 110
Increase In inventones (12 0) (34 1)
Increase i recevables (21 0} (133)
Increase in payables 76 0 98 2
Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit obligations 38 {105 4)
Increase in provisions 95 49
Cash generated from operations 307 6 1828
29 Analysis of net debt
Other
30 January non-cash 29 lanuary
2010 Cash flow movements 2011
Consolidated £m £m £m £m
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 560 0 (47 3) - 5127
Denvative financial instruments 136 - (50} 86
5736 (47 3) (50} 5213
Current habilities
Bank overdrafts (1156} 503 (100 0) (165 3)
Finance leases o7 04 (0 5) (0 8)
Denvative financial instruments (2 4) - 14 (10)
(118 7} 507 (99 1) (167 1)
Non-current habilihes
Borrowings (777 3} (142 O) 1000 (819 3)
Unamortised bond transaction costs 28 42 07 63
Fair value adjustment for
hedged nsk on bonds (127) - 65 (62)
Finance leases {28 5) - 05 {28 0)
(815 7) (137 8) 106 3 (847.2)
Total net debt (360 8) {134 4) 22 (493 0)
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Notes to the accounts

continued

29 Analysis of net debt {continued)

Reconciliation of net cash flow to net debt

Year to Year to

29 January 30 January

2011 2010

Consoldated £m £m
Increase in cash in the year 3.0 3226
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing (137 4) (272 1)
Movement in debt for the year (134 4) 50 5
Opening net debt {360 8) (402 3)
Non-cash movements 2.2 9m
Closing net debt (493.0) (360 8)

30 Commutments and contingent hiabilities

At 29 January 2011 contracts had been entered 1nto for future capital expenditure
of £53 6m (2010 £32 8m) for the group, and £27 6m (2010 £8 5m) for the company

John Lews plc continues to provide lease guarantees in favour of the group’s former

associate company, Ocado Limited, of £6 8m (2010 £6 8m)

31 Operating lease commitments

2011 2011 2010 2010
Future aggregate minimum lease Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
payments under non-cancellable butdings machinery buildings machinery
operating leases, payable £m £m £m £m
Consolidated
Within one year 1047 - 89 3 01
Later than one year and less than five years 3940 - 344 2 -
After five years 1,686 5 - 1,572 3 -
Company
Within one year 367 - 280 01
Later than one year and less than five years 1358 - 1056 -
After five years 824 6 - 757 8 -
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31 Operating lease commitments {continued)

Future aggregate mimimum lease 2011 2010
payments under non-cancellable Land and Land and
operating leases, payable after five buildings buildings
years comprise the following £m £m

Consolidated

Later than five years and less than ten years 408 2 3522
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 527 6 4798
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 2324 2199
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 2292 2200
After eighty years 2891 3004

1,686.5 1572 3

Company

Later than five years and less than ten years 134 6 1008
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 207.3 169 5
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 1194 117 0
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 114.1 1081
After eighty years 249 2 262 4

824 6 7578

Total future sub-lease payments recevable relaung to the above operaung leases
amounted to £16 Om (2010 £17 1m) for the group, and £3 9m (2010 £4 8m) for the
company

32 Related party transactions

During the year John Lews plc entered into transacuions with other group companies in
respect of the supply of goods for resale and associated services totalling £28 8m

(2010 £24 7m), purchase of goods for resale totalling £56 9m (2010 £45 8m), the supply
of IT and related services totalling £39 2m (2010 £35 8m), and the hire of vehicles
totalling £11 9m (2010 £10 4m)

In addition, John Lewss plc settled other transactions on behalf of group compames for
administrative convenience, such as payroll and supplier settlement All such transactions
were charged at cost to the relevant group company It 1s not pracucal to quantify these
recharges

The group entered mnto an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January
2010 to address an element of the Scheme deficit that existed at that ume Details of this
arrangement are set out in note 25

Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 9
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31 Operating lease commitments (continued)

Future aggregate minimum lease 2011 2010
payments under non-cancellable Land and Land and
operating leases, payable after five buildings buildings
years compnse the following £m £m

Consolidated

Later than five years and less than ten years 408 2 3522
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 527 6 4798
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 2324 2199
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 229 2 2200
After eighty years 2891 3004

1,686.5 15723

Company

Later than five years and less than ten years 134 6 1008
Later than ten years and less than twenty years 207.3 1695
Later than twenty years and less than forty years 1194 1170
Later than forty years and less than eighty years 1141 1081
After eighty years 249 2 262 4

8246 7578

Total future sub-lease payments receivable relating to the above operatung leases
amounted 1o £16 0m (2010 £17 1m) for the group, and £3 9m (2010 £4 8m) for the
company

32 Related party transactions

Durning the year John Lews plc entered into transactions with other group companies in
respect of the supply of goods for resale and associated services totaling £28 8m

(2010 £24 7m), purchase of goods for resale totalling £56 9m (2010 £45 8m), the supply
of IT and related services totaling £39 2m (2010 £35 8m), and the hire of vehicles
totalhing £11 9m (2010 £10 4m)

In addiuon, John Lews plc settled other transactions on behalf of group compames for
administrauve convernence, such as payroll and suppher settlement All such transacuons
were charged at cost to the relevant group company It s not practical to quanufy these
recharges

The group entered into an arrangement with the Pension Scheme Trustee on 30 January
2010 to address an element of the Scheme deficit that existed at that ume Details of this
arrangement are set out 1n note 25

Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 9
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
Jor the annual report and the
Jinancial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the finanaal statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulauons

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have prepared the group and parent company financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the finanaal statements
unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that pertod In preparing these financal
statements, the directors are required to

- select suutable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed,
subject to any maternal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The directars are responsible for keeping adequate accountng records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company’s transacnons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial posiuon of the company and the group and enable them to ensure that the
financiat statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial
statements, Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulanon They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detecuon of fraud and other irregularues

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the company’s website
Legislation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermnation of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and funcnons are histed 1n the directors and adwvisers section
of the annual report confirm that, 10 the best of their knowledge

— the group financial statements, whuch have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial positon and
profit of the group, and

— the business review includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the posiuen of the group, together with a descnpuion of the principal nisks
and uncertainties that 1t faces

By order of the Board

Charlie Mayfield
Marnisa Cassom

Directors
7 Apnit 2011

85




John Lewns plc annual report and accounts 2011

Independent auditors’ report
to the members of
John Leuns plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) of John Lews plc for the year ended 29 January 2011 which comprise the
consolidated income statement, the consohdated statement of comprehensive

imncome/ (expense), the consolhdated balance sheet, the balance sheet of the company, the
consolidated and company statements of changes 1n equuty, the consoldated and company
statemnents of cash flows and the related notes The finanaal reporung framework that has been
applied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporung Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as apphed 1n accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihties Statement set out on page 85, the
directors are responsible for the preparauon of the financial statements and for being sausfied
that they give a rue and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and Internauonal Standards on Audiung
(UK and Freland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiung Pracuces Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other persen to whom this report 1s shown or mto whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior conseni in wnung

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financaal
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accountng polictes are appropriate to the group’s and company’s circumstances
and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounung estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentatton of the financial
statements

Opimon on financial statements
In our opinion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent
company’s affairs as at 29 January 2011 and of the group’s profit and group’s and parent
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

- the group financaial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union,

— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared i accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon and as applied in accordance with the prowvisions
of the Companies Act 2006, and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements, Arucle 4 of the 1AS
Regulatuon
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Opmzon on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opimien the imformanon given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, 1n our opimon

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been recewed from branches not visited by us, or

— the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accountng records
and returns, or

— certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

— we have not received all the informauon and explanations we require for our audit

Rosemary mpland (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

7 Apnl 2011
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Retail branches

John Lewis Stores

London

Southern England

Midlands, East Angha,

Northern England, Wales and Scotfand

John Lews, Oxford Street
John Lews, Brent Cross
Peter Jones Sloane Square
John Lews, Kingston

John Lews at home, Croydon

John Lew:s, Bluewater

John Lews, Cribbs Causeway
John Lewas, High Wycombe
John Lews, Milton Keynes
John Lewts, Reading

John Lews, Southampton
John Lews, Watford

John Lews, Welwyn

Knight 8: Lee, Southsea
John Lewts at home, Poole

John Lewts at home, Swindon

John Lewss at home, Tunbrnidge Wells
Waitrose Supermarkets and Stores

John Lews, Aberdeen
John Lewss, Cambndge
John Lews, Cardiff
John Lews, Cheadle
John Lewss Edunburgh
John Lews, Glasgow
John Lews, Lewcester
John Lews, Liverpool

John Lews, Newcastle
John Lewis, Norwich
John Lews, Notangham
John Lewts, Peterborough
John Lewis Sheffield
John Lews, Solihul)

John Lewrs, Trafford

London

Balham Bromley East Sheen Hornchurch Putney Surbiton
Banstead Bromley Scuth Edgware Road Islington Raynes Park Swiss Cottage
Barbican Canary Wharf Enfield Kensington Rachmond Temple Fortune
Barnet Cheam Finchley Kingston Ruushp Twickenham
Bayswater Chelsea Fulham Marylebone Sanderstead Wandsworth
Beckenham Chiswick Gloucester Road Mill Hall South Harrow West Ealing
Belgravia Clapham Green Sireet Green New Malden South Woodford Westfield
Bloomsbury Clerkenwell Harrow Weald Old Brompten Staines Whetstone
Brent Cross Crouch End Holloway Road Palmers Green St Kathanine Docks  Worcester Park
Southern England

Abingdon Cheltenham Fleet Lewes Romsey Upminster
Allington Park Chesham Frimley Longfield Salisbury Wallingford
Amersham Chichester Gillingham Lymington Saltash Walton on Thames
Ampthill Chnstchurch Godalming Maidenhead Sandhurst Wantage
Andover Cirencester Goldsworth Park Marlborough Sevenoaks Waterlooville
Ashford Cobham Gosport Marlow Sidmouth Wellington

Bath Coulsdon Hailsham Melksham Southampton Welwyn Garden City
Beaconsfield Crewkerne Harpenden Milion Keynes Southend Westbury Park
Berkhamsted Crowborough Haslemere Nailsea Southsea West Byfleet
Biggin Hill Croydon Havant Newbury St Albans Weybridge
Billencay Dartford Headington Northwood Stevenage Wimborne
Buishop s Stordord Dibden Henley Okehampton Stornngton Winchester
Brackley Dorchester Hersham Oxted Stroud Windsor
Bndport Dorking Hertford Paddock Wood Sunningdale Winton
Bnghton Easthourne Huchin Parkstone Tenterden Wimey
Buckhurst Hill East Cowes Holsworthy Petersfield Thame Wokingham
Buckingham East Grinstead Horley Porushead Thatcham Woodley
Burgess Hull Enfield Chase Horsham Ramsgate Tonbndge Worthing
Caterham Epsom Hythe Reading Torquay Yateley
Caversham Esher Leigh on Sea Rickmansworth Towcester

Chandlers Ford Farnharn Leighton Buzrard Ringwood Twyford

Maidlands, East Anglia, Wales, Northern England and Scodand

Abergavenny Clifion Harrogate Mormingside Poynton Sutton Coldfield
Alcester Colchester Hexham Newcastle Rushden Swaftham
Altnncham Comely Bank Hunuongdon Newark Saffron Walden Weston Super Mare
Ashbourne Daventry Kemlworth Newmarket Sandbach Willerby

Barry Drottwech Kingsthorpe Newport Saxmundham Wilmslow

Blaby Ely Leeds, The Core Norwich Sheffield Wolverhampton
Bury 5t Edmunds Fitzroy Street Lichfield Notongham Spinmngfields Wvmondham
Buxton Formby Lincoln Oadby Stamford York

Byres Road Four Oaks Lutterworth Otley St Ives

Caldicot Great Mabern Meanwood Peterborough 5t Neots

Cambndge Hall Green Mena Bridge Ponteland Stourbndge

Cheadle Hulme Harborne Monmouth Pontprennau Sudbury

Channel Islands

Admurral Park Rohais St Helter St Saviour

In addition to the shops listed above, the Payinership operates the following businesses

Jotin Lewis Durect Internet retadl

‘Waitrose Drect flernet setari, mal order and wholesale including export

Herbert Parkmson, Darwen Weauing and making up
Leckford Estate, Stockbndge Farming
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Notice of AGM

Notice 1s hereby given that the eighty-third annual general meetung of the company will be held
at 12 30pm on 27 May 2011 at Parmership House, Carhsle Place, London SW1P 1BX

— To recewve the directors’ report and accounts for the year 2010/11
- To consider the final dividend

— To consider the re-elecuon of directors

— To consider the re-appointment of the auditors

~ To consider the remuneraton of the auditors

By Order of the Board

Margaret Casely-Hayford

Company Secretary

171 Victona Street, London SWIE 5NN
7 Apnl 2011

A member enutled to attend and vote at this meeting 1s entitled to appoint one or more proxies
to attend and vote mnstead of him

A proxy need not be a member of the company, but a proxy who 1s not a member has only the
nights conferred by section 329 of the Compamies Act 2006 To be effective, a proxy form must
reach the company’s registered office not later than forty-eight hours before the ume for
holding the meeting For the convemence of members a form of proxyis enclosed
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JLP Scottish Partnership

Partnership information

Partners

Company Secretary
Audttors
Solicitors

Bankers

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership
John Lewns Properties plc

Margaret Casely-Hayford
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Lovells

Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Partners’ report

The partners present their report and the audited financial statements of JLP Scottish Partnershup for the penod from
17 December 2009 to 29 January 2011

Principal activity

The pnncipal activity of JLP Scottish Partnership 1s a property holding partnershap

The partnership was formed on 17 December 2009 between JLP Scottish Limited Partnershup and John Lewis
Properties plc The partnership acquired frechold properties at their market value of £150,900,000 on 30 January
2010, that were owned by the John Lew1s Partnership plc group, which was funded by the capital 1t received from its
partners These freehold properties, which are held as mvestment properties, are leased to John Lewss plc or
Wartrose Limited, and the partnership receives rental income In addition, the parmership fair values the mnvestment
properttes on an annual basis and allocates and distributes income and capital to the partners in accordance with an
Amended and Restated Limited Partnershup Agreement dated 26 January 2010 between JLP Scotush Limited
Partnership and John Lew1s Properties plc

Business review

The staterment of comprehensive income on page 5 shows a profit for the penod ended 29 January 2011 of
£19,626,800 pnincipally as a result of the fair value gains on revaluing the investment properties together with rental
income received i the penod

The balance sheet on page 6 shows the partnership’s financial position at the period end The partnership has
increased 1ts partmers’ funds from £150,900,200 to £167,165,200, reflecting the result for the peniod

The partnership 1s currently 1n a net asset position The partners are of the opinion that the parinership has adequate
resources to continue in operattonal existence for the foreseeable future The partners are satisfied wath the
partnership’s results and 1ts financtal position and will continue to pursue suitable business opportunities

Financial risk management

JLP Scottish Partnership’s financial risks are managed within the framework of the John Lewas Partnership plc
group’s arrangements The principal financial risk the John Lewis Partnership ple faces 1s the ability to generate
sufficient funds to satisfy the John Lewns Partnership plc’s business needs, to meet its Partners’ expectations for
Partnershup bonus and to mitigate against any adverse financial impact resulting from nisks 1dentified m the John
Lews Partnership plc’s business planming process crystallising Details of the John Lewis Partrership ple’s
financial nsk management policies are included 1n note 22 of the annual report and accounts of John Lews
Partnershup plc

Partners

John Lew:s Properties plc JLP Scottish Limited Partnership
171 Victona Street John Lewis

London 69 St James Centre

SWI1E SNN Edinburgh

EH1 35P




JLP Scottish Partnership

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each of the partners at the date of approval of this report confirm that

1 so far as the partners are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the partnershup’s auditors are
unaware, and

2 the partners have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as partners n order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit mformation and to establish the partnership’s auditors are aware of that
information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

For and on behalf of the partners
(Z Qk. P !

Director Dhrector

John Lewis Properties plc John Lew:s plc (as General Partner of JLP Scottish
Limited Partnership)

28 Apnl 2011 28 Apnl 2011
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Partners’ responsibility statement

The partners are responsible for preparing the financial statements mn accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requures the partners to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
partners have elected to prepare the financial statements for the partnership in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion Under company law the partners must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs
of the partnership and of the profit or loss of the partnership for that period In preparing those financial statements,
the partners are required to

select suttable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and
. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s mappropriate to presume that the

partnership will continue 1n business

The partners are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the
partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the partnership
and enable them to ensure that the financial staternents comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
qualifying partnerships They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the partnership and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties
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Independent auditors’ report to the partners of JLP Scottish Partnership

We have audited the financial statements of JLP Scottish Partnership for the period ended 29 January 2011 which
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of the partners and auditors

As exptained more fully in the Partners’ responsibilities statement set out on page 3, the partners are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimon, has been prepared for and only for the partners as a body 1n accordance with the
Partnership Agreement and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this opimion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material musstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of

+ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the partnership’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the partners, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the financial statements

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the partnership’s affaurs as at 29 January 2011 and of its profit for the
period then ended,

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Usion, and

¢ have been properly prepared n accordance with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement

Rosemary Shapland (Senior Statutory Auditor)
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants

London

28 April 2011
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the period ended 29 January 2011

Rental income
Administrative expenses
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties

Operating profit
Finance income

Profit and total comprehensive income for the period

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form part of these financial statements

Note

2011
£

6,703,700
(12,700)

12,900,000

19,591,000

35,800
19,626,800
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Balance sheet

As at 29 January 2011
Note 2011
£
Non-current assets
Investment property 3 163,800,000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 200
Loan to John Lews plc 4,668,400
4,668,600
Total assets 168,468,600
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 4 (1,303,400}
Total habilities (1,303,400}
Net assets attributable to partners 167,165,200
Represented by:
Partners’ interests
Partners’ capital 5 150,900,200
Partners’ other interests 5 16,265,000
167,165200

These financial statements were approved by the partners on 28 Apnl 2011, and signed on 1ts behalf by

ICIQ/ M@(’. G')_g,ol____

Direchor Director

John Le 1es plc John Lew1s ple (as General Partner of JLP Scottish
Lamuted Partnership)

28 Apnl 2011 28 Apnil 2011
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Statement of cash flows
As at 29 January 2011

Note

Cash generated from operations 6

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment properties
Finance mcome received

Cash outflow from loan to John Lews plc

Net cash used 1n investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash inflow from partiners
Income distribution to partners

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net cash generated for the period

Net cash at the end of the period comprises:
Cash

2011
£

7,994,400

(150,900,000)
35,300

(4,668,400)
{155,532,600)

150,900,200
(3,361,800)

147,538,400
200

200




JLP Scottish Partnership o

Notes to the accounts

1.

Accounting convention and basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon The particular accounting policies adopted are descnibed below
and have been applied consistently throughout the period

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of the
revaluation of investment properties These financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to qualifying partnerships

The partnership 1s an intermediate parent entity and 15 exempt from preparing consolidated financial
statements as noted n section 400 of the Companies Act 2006

The following amendment was adopted by the partnership from 17 December 2009 and has not had a
signmificant impact on the partnership’s profits for the period or disclosures

- Annual improvements 2009

There 1s a new accounting standard that has been published and 1s applicable for the partnership’s
accounting period begmning on or after 30 January 2011 or later periods, but which the partnership has not
adopted early Thus 1s as follows

- IAS 24 (revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’

This 1s not expected to have a matenial impact on the partnership’s profit for the period, but may affect
disclosures

Rental income

Rental income 1 credited to the statement of comprehensive mcome on an accruals basis

Operating costs

Operating costs are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basts

Finance income

Finance income 1s credited to the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis
Investment property

Property that 13 held for long term rental yields, for capital appreciation or both, and that 1s not occupied by
the partnership 1s classified as investment property Investment property compnses frechold land and
buildings Investment properties are revalued on an annual basis to fair value after consultation with external
independent valuers

Fair value gains or losses arising on revaluation of mvestment properties are credited or debited to the
statement of comprehensive income

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 1n the balance sheet comprtse cash at bank
Taxation

No tax 1s recorded in the financial statements of the partnership, as all tax lhiabihities are liabilities of the
partners and not the partnership
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2. Administrative expenses

Admumstrative expenses comprise auditors remuneration of £12,700

The partnershup had no employees during the current period

3. Investment Property

Carrying amount at 17 December 2009

Additions

Fair value gamn on revaluation

Carryimng amount at 29 January 2011

2011

£

150,900,000
12,900,000

163,800,000

The partnership’s investment properties were valued by the partners after consultation with CB
Richard Ellis and BNP Panbas Real Estate UK, Chartered Surveyors, as at 29 January 2011

4, Trade and other payables

Other tax
Deferred income

5. Partners’ interests

JLP Scotush Limited
Partnership

John Lewns Properties
plc

Total partners’
interests at 29 January
2011

2011
£

293,300

1,010,100
1,303,400

Share of Share of Total interests

Partners’ income capital Income at 29 January
capital profit profit distributions 2011

£ £ £ £ £
100,000,100 6,600,100 12,900 (3,300,100) 103,313,000
50,900,100 126,700 12,887,100 (61,700) 63,852,200
150,900,200 6,726,800 12,900,000 (3,361,800) 167,165,200
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6.

Reconciliation of profit to cash generated from operations

2011
£
Profit for the pertod 19,626,800
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties (12,900,000)
Finance income (35,800)
Increase in payables 1,303,400
Cash generated from operations 7,994,400
Operating leases
2011
£
The future minimum lease payments recervable under non
cancellable operating leases are as follows
Within one year 7,024,000
Later than one year and less than five years 28,096,000
After five years 105,350,000
140,470,000

The partnership’s operating leases are for a further twenty years

Related party transactions

During the period JLP Scottish Partnership recerved rental mcome of £6,703,700 and finance income of
£35,800 from other group companies within the John Lews Partnership plc group

Included 1n current assets 1s a balance of £4,668,400 owed by John Lews plc, a fellow group undertaking

Ultimate controlling party

John Lews plc 1s the parent company of the smallest group to consolidate the accounts of JLP Scotush
Partnership John Lewis Partnership ple, the partnership’s nltimate parent company, 1s the parent company
of the largest group to consolidate these accounts Ultimate control rests with John Lewis Partnership
Trust Limited, whach holds the equity of John Lew1s Partnership plc in trust for the benefit of the
employees All of these compamies are registered 1n England and Wales

Copies of these accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary, John Lewis Partnership,
Partnership House, Carlisle Place, London, SW1P 1BX
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Partnership information

Partners JLP Scotland Lumted
John Lewns Partnership Pensions Trust
John Lews ple
Company Secretary Margaret Casely-Hayford
Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Sohcitors Lovells
Bankers Royal Bank of Scotland ple
Registered office John Lewis, 69 St James Centre, Edinburgh, EH1 35P
Registered 1n Scotland No 7561

General partner’s report

The general partner presents 1its report and the audited financial statements of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership for
the period from 17 December 2009 to 29 January 2011

Principal activity

The principal activity of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership 1s an investment holding partnership

The partmership was registered (mumber 7561) in Scotland as a limited partnership by the Registrar of Companies
Scotland on 17 December 2009 and 1s a partnership between John Lewss plc, JLP Scotland Limited and John Lewis
Partnership Pensions Trust as trustee of the John Lewis Partnership Trust for Pensions The partnership allocates and
distributes mcome to its partners 1n accordance with an Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement
dated 26 January 2010

The partnership has an interest m JLP Scottish Partnership, which 1s a property holding partnership estabhished
pursuant to a Partnership Agreement with John Lewis Properties ple and it recerves mcome and capital distnbutions
from JLP Scottish Partnership 1n accordance with that agreement

Business review

The statement of comprehensive income on page 5 shows a profit for the period ended 29 January 2011 of
£3,295,800 principally as a result of the distribution recerved from JLP Scottish Partnership

The balance sheet on page 6 shows the partnership’s financial position at the penod end The partners’ funds as at
29 January 2011 were £100,000,200

The partnership 1s currently 1n a net assets position The directors of the general partner are of the opimnton that the
partnership has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The directors of
the general partner are satisfied with the partnership’s results and 1ts financial position and will continue to pursue
suitable business opportunities

Financial risk management

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s financial risks are managed withun the framework of the John Lewis
Partnership plc group’s arrangements The principal financial nisk the John Lewis Partnership plc faces 1s the
ability to generate sufficient funds to satisfy the John Lewis Partnership plc’s business needs, to meet 1ts Partners’
expectations for Partnership bonus and to mitigate against any adverse financial impact resulting from nisks
identified in the John Lewis Partnershup plc’s business planming process crystallising Details of the John Lewis
Partnership plc’s financial nsk management pohicies are included n note 22 of the annual report and accounts of
John Lewis Partnership plc
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General partner and manager

John Lewns plc

171 Victona Street
London

SWIE 5NN

Disclosure of information to the auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a director of the general partner at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1 so far as the director 13 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the partnership’s auditors are
unaware, and

2 the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish the partnership’s auditors are aware
of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006

For and on behalf of the general partner

M2 Caoe

Drrector
John Lewis ple
28 Apnl 2011
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General partner’s responsibility statement

The directors of the general partner are responsible for prepanng the financial statements n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors of the general partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that taw the directors of the general partner have elected to prepare the financial statements for the
partnershap 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Umon Under company law the directors of the general partner must not approve the financial statemeats unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the partnership and of the profit or loss of the
partnership for that peniod In preparing those financial statements, the directors of the general partner are required
1]

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explamed 1n the financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 inappropriate to presume that the
partnership will continue 1n business

The directors of the general partner are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the partnership and enable them to ensure that the financtal statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 as applicable to qualifying partnerships They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulaninies
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Independent auditors’ report to the partners of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

We have audited the financial statements of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership for the period ended 29 January
2011 which compnise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and
the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n thewr preparation 15 applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unron

Respective responsibilities of the general partner and auditors

As explained more fully 1n the General partner’s respoasibilities statement set out on page 3, the general partner
1s responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimon, has been prepared for and only for the partners as a body 1 accordance with
the Partnership Agreement and for no other purpose We do not, mm giving this opimon, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of

s  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the partnership’s circumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigmficant accounting estimates made by the general partner, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership’s affairs as at 29 January 2011 and of 1ts profit for the
period then ended,
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement

Rosemary Shapland (Senior Statutory Auditor)
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants

London

28 Apnl 2011
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the period ended 29 January 2011

Distribution received
Admimstrative expenses

Profit and total comprehensive income for the period

The notes on pages 8 to 10 form part of these financial statements

Note

2011
£

3,300,100
(4,300
3,295,800
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Balance sheet

As at 29 January 2011

Note 2011

£

Non-current assets
Investment 1n partnership 3 100,000,100
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,400
Total assets 100,004,500
Current liabilities
Other payables 4 (4,300)
Total liabilities (4,300
Net assets attributable to partners 100,000,200
Represented by:
Partners’ interests
Partners’ capital and other interests 5 100,000,200

These financial statements were approved by the general partner on 28 Apnl 2011, and signed on 115 behalf by

M/\.EQ C ":.‘DO—-—:.\

Director
John Lewas plc
28 Apnl 2011 Registered number 7561
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Statement of cash flows
As at 29 January 2011

Note

Cash generated from operations 6

Cash flows from 1nvesting activities
Investment 1n partnership

Net cash used 1in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash inflow from partners
Dustnbution to partners

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net cash generated for the period

Net cash at the end of the period comprises:
Cash

2011
£

3,300,100

(100,000,100)
(100,000,100)

100,000,200
(3,295,800)

96,704,400
4,400

4,400
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Notes to the accounts

1.

Accounting convention and basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The particular accounting policies adopted are described below
and have been applied consistently throughout the period

The financial statements are prepared under the hstonical cost convention These financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to qualifying partnerships

The partnership 1s an intermediate parent entity and 1s exempt from preparing consolhidated financial
statements as noted n section 400 of the Compames Act 2006

The following amendment was adopted by the partnership from 17 December 2009 and has not had a
significant impact on the partnership’s profits for the period or disclosures

- Annual improvements 2009

There 1s a new accounting standard that has been published and 1s applicable for the partnershup’s
accounting period beginning on or after 30 January 2011 or later penods, but which the partnership has not
adopted early Ths 1s as follows

- IAS 24 (revised) ‘Related Party Disclosures’

Thas 15 not expected to have a matenial impact on the partnership’s profit for the penod, but may affect
disclosures

Operating costs

Operating costs are charged to the statement of comprehenstve income on an accruals basis
Distributions

Distributions are credited to the statement of comprehenstve income when recerved
Investments

Investments are carned at cost and consist of an mnterest 1n JLP Scottish Partnership

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 1n the balance sheet compnise cash at bank

Taxation

No tax 1s recorded n the financial statements of the partnership, as all tax habiliies are habilities of the
partners and not the partnership
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2. Administrative expenses
Admimstrative expenses comprises auditors remuneration of £4,300

The partnership had no employees dunng the current penod

3 Investment in partnership
2011
£
Cost
Carrving amount at 17 December 2009 -
Investment 1n partnership 100,000,100
Carrying amount at 29 January 2011 100,000,100

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has a 66% investment 1n JLP Scotuish Partnership, a property
holding partnership, as set out in the General partner’s report on page 1 The investment 1n JLP
Scottish Partnership has a carrying value of £103,313,000 at 29 January 2011

4. Other payables
w0n

Audit fees 4,300

5. Partners’ interests

Total interests

Partners’ Share of at 29 January
capital income profit Distributions 2011
£ £ £ £
Limited Partners:
JLP Scotland Limited 100 - - 100
John Lewis Partnership 95,000,000 3,279,300 (3,279,300) 95,000,000
Pensions Trust
General Partner:
John Lews plc 5,000,100 16,500 (16,500) 5,000,100
Total partners’ interests 100,000,200 3,295,800 (3,295,800) 100,000,200

at 29 January 2011
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6. Reconciliation of profit to cash generated from operations
2011
£
Profit for the period 3,295,800
Increase 1n payables 4,300
Cash generated from operations 3,300,100
7. Related party transactions

During the pertod JLP Scottish Limited Partnership received a distnbution £3,300,100 from JLP Scottish
Partnership and paid a distribution to 1ts partners as set out n note 5, all of which are undertakings within the
John Lew1s Partnershup plc group

8. Ultimate controlling party

John Lews plc 15 the parent company of the smallest group te consolidate the accounts of JLP Scottish
Limited Partnership John Lewas Partnership plc, the partnership’s ultimate parent company, 1s the parent
company of the largest group to consohidate these accounts Ultimate control rests with John Lewts
Partnership Trust Limited, which holds the equity of John Lewis Partnership plc in trust for the benefit of
the employees These companies are registered in England and Wales JLP Scottish Limited Partnership
18 regastered i Scotland

Coptes of these accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary, John Lew1s Partnership,
Partnershup House, Carlisle Place, London, SW1P 1BX
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